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O Mission:

“Frarspacific ndusties Group Lid
provides o comprehensive range of
srviroremental waste rmanagerment,
faciity roonagement angd transport
services desigred o miigate

ihe ervironroerdal npact of our
customers” ndustral, rmundcipal
aned cormevercid operationa.”

Qur Vision:

ranspaciie Industries Sroup Lid
aspires o becorme the pre-erainerd
prowidier of integrated ndustrisd
services through cormprehensive
recovery, waste management and
traneport soltions.”
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Transpaciic industries Group Lid
{the Company} and the Board are
highly committed to appropriate
levels of corporate governance.

An extensive review of the Company’s
corporate governance framework
was completed during the year in
light of best practice recommendations
released by the Australian Stock
Exchange Corporate Governance
Council (ASXCGC). In March 2005,
the Board formally adopted arange
of policies, many of which are
avadlable on our website at:

wwww trangpacific.com.au, The
Company's corporate governance
structure has been designed to
optimise corporate performance
and accourtability as appropriate
for it particular clrcumstances.

The Company complies with the
ASXCGS “Principles of Good
Corporate Governance and Best
Practice Recommendations”

with only two exceptions, and the
sxplanation for these departures

is set out in this statement.

The refationship between the Board
and senior management is critical to
the Company’s long-term success.
The Directors are regpongsible to the
sharsholders for the performance of
the Company in both the short and
the longer term and seek 1o balance
sometimes compsting obisctives in
the best interests of the Company as
a whole. Thelr focus is to enhance the
interests of shareholders and other
key stakeholders and to ensure the
Company is properly managed.

Day to day management of

the Company's affairs and the
implementation of the corporate
strategy and policy initiatives are
formally delegated by the Board to

the Bxecutive Chairman, the Chief
Executive Officer and senior executives
as set out in the Board Charter. These
delegations are reviewad on an annual
basis.

A description of the Company's main
corporate governance practices is set
out below. Afl these practices, unless
otherwise stated, were in place from
listing date of 3 May 2005.

The Board of Directors

The Board operates in accordance
with the broad principles set out in its
Charter which can be viewed onthe
corporate governance information
section of the Company website. The
charter detalls e Board's composition
and responsibilities.

Board composition

The Company’s Constitution calls

for at least three but not more

than ten Directors. The Board is
currently comprised of four executive
Diractors and four non-executive
Directors. ASXCGC Best Practice
Recommendation 2.1 states the
majority of the Board should be
independent Directors. The current
Board believes eight Directors is an
optimal number of directors for a
company the size and growth profile
of the Company. it believes the skills
and industry knowledge of all four
executive Directors are required to
lead the Company forward and to add
additional independent Directors at this
stage would increase the Board's size
bayond an efficient working levsl.

Board members

Details of the members of the

Board, their experience, expertise,
cualifications, term of office and
independence are set out earlier in
the annual report. The Board has a
broad range of relevart operational,
regulatory, risk management, financial
and other skills and expertise to mest
fts objectives and sffectively govern
the Company.

Chairman

The Chairman is responsible

for leading the Board, ensuring
Directors are properly briefed in &l
matters relevant 1o thelr role and
responsibilities, facilitating Board
discussions and managing the Board's
refationship with the Company's senior
executives. ASXCGC Best Practice
Recommendation 2.2 states the
Chairman should be an independent
Diractor. The current Board believes
the Company’s founder and major
sharsholder, Terry Peabody, has

the vision, skills and deep industry
knowledgs to lead the Company,
clearly communicate the Company's
objectives and stralegy, and to set
market expectations.

Non-executive

Directors’ independence

The Board has reviewed the
ndspendence of the non-executive
Directors and considers each to be
independent and free of any business
or other refationship that could,

or could reasonably be perceived
to, materially interfere with their
independent judgement and

ability to act in the best interests

of the Company.
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The Board has adopted specific
principles in relation to the non-
executive Directors’ independence.
These state that 1o be deemed
independent, a Director must be

a noh-axecutive and:

*not be a substantial shareholder of the
Company or an officer of, or otherwise
associated directly with, a substantial
shareholder of the Company {a
substantial shareholder is one who
owns 5% or more of the Company);

swithin the last three vears, not have
been employed in an executive
capacity by the Cormpany or any
other Group member, or been a
Director after ceasing to hold any
such employment;

swithin the last three vears not
have been a principal of a material
professional adviser or a materal
consultant to the Company or any
other Group member, or an employee
materially associated with the service
provided;

*not be a material supplier or customer
of the Company or any other Group
member, or an officer of or otherwise
associated directly or indirectly with
a matetial supplier or customer,;

s+must have no material contractual
relationship with the Company or
a controlled entity other than as a
Director of the Company;

*not have been on the Board for
a period which could, or could
reasonably be perceived to, materally
irderfere with the Director's ability to act
in the best interests of the Company;
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*be free from any interest and any
business or other relationship which
could, or could reasonably be
perceived to, materially interfers
with the Director's abiity o act in
the best interests of the Company.

Materiality for these purposes is
determined on both cuantitative and
cualitative bases. An amount of over
5% of annuat turnover of the Company
or Group or 5% of the individual
Directors’ net worth is considered
material for these purposes. In
addition, a transaction of any amount
or a relationship is deemed material

if knowledge of it may impact the
shareholders’ understanding of the
Director's performances.

Term of office

The Company’s Constitution requires
one third of the Dirsctors, other than the
Executive Chairman {as the nominated
managing director), 1o retire from office
at sach Annual General Mesting.
Directors, other than the Executive
Chairman, who hold office for a period
of three years or a period expiring at the
thirdt Annual General Mesting following
their appointment {whichever is the
longer} must also retire. Where sligible,
a Director may stand for re-slection.

Meetings of the Board

and commitment of

ron-executive Directors

The Board held regular Board
meetings during the year, particularly
while preparing for ASX listing and
post listing. In addition to the regular
scheduled meetings, the Board mests
whenever necessary to deal with
specific matters needing attention.

The number of mestings of the
Company's Board of Directors and of
each Board compmitiee held during the
year ended 30 June 2005, and the
number of meetings attended by each
Director s disclosed on page 26.

The commitments of non-executive
Directors are considered by the
nomination and remuneration
committes prior 1o the directors’
appointment to the Board of the
Company and are reviewed each year
as part of the annual performance
assessment.

Prior to appointment or being submitted
for re-slection, each non-axecutive
Director is required o specifically
acknowlsdge that they have and will
continue 1o have the time available to
discharge their responsibilities to the
Company.

Nomination and appointment

of new Directors

When a new Director is to be
appointed, the nomination and
remnuneration committes reviews the
range of skills, experience and expertise
on the Board, identifies its needs and
prepares a short list of candidatas

with appropriate skills and experience.
Whaere necessary, advice is sought from
independent consultants.

The full Board then appoints the

most suitable candidate who must
stand for election at the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company. The
committes's nomination of existing
Dirsctors for reappointment is not
autormatic and is contingent on their
past performance, contribution to the
Company and the current and future
nesds of the Board and Company.




Details of the selection and
appointment processes are available
on the Company website.

Notices of meeting for the
election of Directors comply
with the ASXCGC's best
praciice recommendations.
New Directors are provided with

a letter of appointment setting out
the Company’s expectations, their
responsibilities and Aghts and the
terms and conditions of their position.
All new Directors participate in

ar induction program which covers
the operation of the Board and its
committess and financial, strategic,
operational and risk management
issues.

Independent professional advice
Directors and Board committees
have the rght, in connection with their
duties and responsibilities, o seek
independent professional advice at
the Company’s expenss. Prior written
approval of the Chalrman i required,
but this will not be unreasonably
withheld.

Performance assessment

The normination and remuneration
committee is regponsible for evaluating
the performance of the Board and key
axecutives.

The Executive Chairman underiakes
an annual assessment of the
performance of individual directors
and meets privately with sach
Director to discuss this assessment.

Board commitiees

There are currently two Board
cormimiitess which have been
astablished to assist in the execution
of the Board's duties and to allow
cetalled consideration of complex
issues. Current committess are

the nomination and remuneration
cormmittee and the audit and risk
management and compliance
comrnittee. Previous commitices
during the year included the PO

due diigence committes. Other
committees of the Board may be
astablished from time o time to
constder matters of special importance
or 1o exercise the delegated authority
of the Board.

Each committee has its own written
charter setting out its role and
ragponsibilities, cormposition, structure,
membership requirements and the
manner in which the committes is

to operate. All of these charters are
reviewed on an annual basis and are
available on the Company website,

All matters determined by committess
are subrmitted to the full Board as
recormmendations for Board decision.
Fach committes is composed of

the people the Board considers

best suited to fulfit the role of sach
committee.

Minutes of committee meetings

are tabled at the immediately
subsecuent Board meeting. Additional
requirements for specific reporting

by the commitiees to the Board

ars addressed in the charter of

the individual committess.

Nomination and

remuneration committee

The nomination and remuneration
commitiee consists of the following
Directors:

Jd J Richards {Chairman;
{Non-Executive Director)

B R Brown (Non-Exscutive Director)
R J Buston (Non-Executive Director)
T E Peabody

H L Wilson

The main responsibiliies of the

cormmities are 10;

» review, assess and make
recommendations 1o the Board
on the necessary and desirable
competencies of the Directors
and relevant Board committees,

» svaluate the Board's performance,

» overses the selection and
appointment practices for
Directors and senior executives,

* agsist the Board in relation 1o
the remuneration policy for the
Company, the application of
the policy fo executives and the
evaluation of the performance
of the Chief Executive Officer.

Audit and risk management

and compliance commitice

The audtt and risk management and
compliance committee consists of
the following non-exscutive Directors:

B R Brown {Chalman)
G B Mulligan
J J Richards.

Details of these Directors’ qualifications
and attendance at audit and risk
management and compliance
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commitiee mestings are set out earlier
and in the Directors’ repart on page 26.

The audtt and rdsk management and
compliance committee has appropriate
financial expertise and all members

are financially literate and have an
appropriate understanding of the
inclustries in which the Company
operates.

The main responsibilities of the
commitiee are 1o:

* review, 3ss6ss and approve the
annual report, the half-year financial
report and other financial information
published by the Company or
released to the market;

-

assist the Board in reviewing the
effectiveness of the organisation’s
internal control environment, covering:

~ 1he effectiveness and
sfficiency of operations;

~ the refability of financial reporting;

- compliance with applicable
laws and regulations;

-

detarmine the scope of the internal
audit function {if any);

oversee the effective operation of the
risk management framework;

-

recommend to the Board the
appointment, reappointment

or replacement of the external
aucitor, and review the torms of iis
engagement, the scope and quality
of the audit and assess the auditor
performance;

congider the independence and
competence of the external auditor on
an ongoing basis;
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» review and approve the level of
non-audi services provided by the
external auditor and ensure it does
not adversely impact on auditor
independence;

» report 1o the Board on matters
relevant fo the commitiee’s role
and responsibiiities.

In fulfiling its responsibilities, the
audit and risk management and
compliance comimitiee:

* receives regular reports from

management and the external auditor;

» moets with the external auditor at
least twice a year or more frequently
i necessary and meeats separately
with the external auditor at least twice
a year without the presence
of management;

* reviews the processes the BExecutive
Chairman, CEO and CFC have in
place 1o support its certifications
to the board;

* reviews any significant disagreements
between the auditor and
management, irespective of whether
they have been rasolved;

» provides the external auditor with a
clear line of direct communication at
any time to the Chairman of the audit
and risk management commities.

The audit and risk management and
compliance commities has authority,
within the scope of its responsibilifies,
o seek any information it requires from
any employee or external party.

Code of conduct and

securities frading

The Company has developed a
Staternent of Valuss and Corporate
Code of Conduct (the Code) which
have been fully endorssd by the
Board. The Code is regularly reviewed
and updated as necessary to ensure
it reflects the highest standards of
behaviour and profassionalism and
the practicas necessary to maintain
confidence in the Company’s integrity.

In summary, the Cods requires that

at all imes Directors and Company
parsonnel be loyal to the Company,
show the highest business integrity in
their dealings with others and conduct
the Company’s business in accordance
with the law and principles of good
business practice.

Additionally the Code reinforces the
Company’s securfties frading policy
which permits Directors and employees
to buy and sell Company securities
during the six week pericd following the
refease of the haif-yearly and annual
financial results to the market and the
six wesk period following the Annual
General Meeting. Trading outside the
permitted trading windows is permitted
only with the prior consent of the
Executive Chairman, Chisf Executive
Officer or Company Secretary. Trading
in securities is prohibited at all imes by
anyons in posgsession of price sensitive
information.

The Code requires employees who

are aware of unethical practices within
the Company or breaches of the
company’s trading policy to report these
to the Company Secretary or the audit
and risk management and compliance
committes.




The Dirsctors are satisfied thet the
Company has complied with its
policies on sthical standards, including
trading in securities.

A copy of the Code and the trading
policy are available on the Company’s
website,

Corporate reporting

The Board receives regular reports
about the financial condition and
operational results of the Company.

The Company's financial report
preparation and approval process for
the 2005 financial year involved the
Executive Chairman, CEO and CFO
making the following certifications to
the Board:

¢ that the Company’s financial reports
are compiete and present a true
and fair view, in all material respects,
of the financial condition and
operational results of the Company
and controlied entities and are in
accordance with relevant accounting
standards;

¢ that the above statement is
founded on a sound system of
risk management and infernal
compliance and control and which
implements the policies adopted by
the Board and that the Company’s
risk management and infernal
compliance and control is
operating efficiently and effectively
in all material respects.

Audit governance

and independence

The Company's policy is to

appoint an external auditor who

clearly demonstrates quality and
independence. The performance of the
external auditor is reviewed annually.
Bentleys MRI Brisbane Partnership
was appointed as the external auditor
in 2002. it is Company policy to require
the auditor to rotate audit engagement
pariners af least svery five years.

Fees paid 1o the extermnal auditor are
provided in note 35 to the financial
statemernts.

Bertleys MR is required o provide an
annual declaration of its independence
to the audit and risk management and
compliance commitiee and the Board.
A copy of this declaration is set out on
page 34.

The external auditor is requested to
attend the Annual General Mesting
and be available to answer shareholder
guestions about the conduct of the
audlit and the preparation and cortent
of the audit report.

Cortinuous disclosure and
shareholder communication

The Company has written policies
and pracedures on information
disclosure that focus on continuous
disclosure of any information
concerning the Company that a
reasonable person would expect to
have a material effect on the price

of the Company’s securities. These
policies and procedures also include
the arrangements the Company has
it place to promote communication
with sharsholders and encourage
effective participation at general
mestings. A summary of these policies
and procadures is available on the
Company's website.

The Company Secretary has been
nominated as the person responsible
for communications with the ASX.
This role includes responsibility

for ensuring compliance with the
continuous disclosure requirements
in the ASX Listing Rules and
overseeing and co-ordinating
information disclosure 1o the ASX.

All information disclosed to the ASX

is posted on the company’s website
following confirmation of the release
by the ASX o the sharemarket. When
analysts are briefed on aspects of the
Company's operations, the material
uged in the presantation is released to
the ASX and posted on the company’s
web gite. Procedures have also been
established for reviewing whether any
price sensitive information has been
inadvertently disclosed, and i so,

this information is also immediately
released to the market.
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The Company aims to keep
shareholders informed of the
Company's performance and major
developments in an ongoing manner.
Annual and half year reports are
cigtributed 10 all sharsholders unless
specifically requested otherwise.

In addition, the Company sesks 1o
provide opportunities for shareholders

to participate through electronic means.

All Company announcements, media
briefings, details of Company meetings,
press releases and financial reports are
available on the Company’s website,

Shareholders are encouraged to attend
Annual General Meetings and to use
this opportunity 1o ask questions.

Risk assessment and management
The Beard, through the audit and

risk managerment and compliance
commities, is responsible for ensuring
there are adequate policies in refation
to risk management, compliance and
internal control systems. In summary,
the Company policies are designed

to ensure strategic, operational, legal,
regulatory and financial risks are
identified, assessed, effectively and
efficiently managed and monitored to
enable achiovernent of the Company’s
business objectives.

Considerable importance is placed

on maintaining a strong coritrol
ervironment. There is an organisation
structure with clearly drawn lines

of accountability and delegation of
authority. Adherence to the Code of
Conduct {see page 21} is required at all
times and the Board actively promotes
a culture of quality and integrity.
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The Company risk managemert
poticy and the operation of the

risk management and compliance
procedures is managed by the
Company Risk Management Group
which consists of senior executives
chaired by the CEO and reporiing to
the audit and risk management and
compliance commitise.

Detallad cortrot procedures cover
management accounting, financial
reporting, project appraisal,
environment, health and safety, 1T
securty, compliance and other risk
management issues. Numerous risk
management controls are smbedded
in the Group's management and
reporting systems, including:

* policies and procedurss for the
management of financial risk and
treasury operations, including hedging
exposures to foreign currencies and
interast rates;

» annual budgsting and monthly
reporting systems for all divisions
which enable monitoring of progress
against performance targets,
evaluation of trends and variances
to be acted upon;

» health and safety programs
and targets;

* Waekly cash flow analysis and
forecasts, including monitoring capial
expendiure, working capital and
management of asseis and liabilities;

* due diiligence procedures
for substantial acquisitions.

In addition, the Board requires that
sach major proposal submitted to the
Board for decision be accompanied
by a comprehensive risk assessment
and, where required, management’s
proposed mitigation strategies.

Internal financial conirols

In view of the divisional structure of the
Company with divisional accounting
functions, and considering cost
effectivenass, the Company relles onits
financial management team to perform
infernal audit functions,

Gcecupational health, safety,
environment and fraining {OHSET)
The Company recognises the
importances of OHSET issues and

is commiifted fo the highest levels

of performance and review. The
Company:

¢ monitors its compliance
with all relevant legisiation;

¢ continually assesses and improves
the impact of its operations on the
erwvironment;

¢ encourages employees to aciively
participate in the management of
OiHSET tssues.

information on compliance with
significant environmental regulations
is set out in the Directors’ report.







Directors’ Report

Your directors present their report on the consolidated entity consisting of Transpacific Industries Group Lid and
the entities it controlied at the end of, or during the financial year ended 30 June 2005.

Bireciors

The names of directors of Transpacific Industries Group Lid during the financial year and up fo the date of this
report are as follows. Directors were in office for this entire period unless otherwise siated.

T E Peabody — Executive Chairman

H L Wilson — Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

J J Richards — Non-Executive Director and Deputy Chairman {appointed 21 March 2005)
G D Mudligan — Non-Executive Director {appointed 13 November 2004)

R J Ruston — Non-Executive Director {appointed 08 March 20085}
B R Brown - Non-Executive Director (appointed 08 March 2605)

G F Sparks — Executive Director {appointed 21 March 2005}
H W Grundell — Executive Director {appointed 21 March 2005)

S G Smith {resigned 08 March 2005)
3 A Peabody (resigned 08 March 2005)
The office of company secretary is held by K L Smith, 8.Com (Hons), CA {(appointed 08 March 2005).

Particulars of directors’ qualifications, experience and special responsibilities are detailed on pages 14 to 15 and
page 19 of the Annual Report.

Principal Activities
During the financial year the principal continuing activities of the consolidated entity consisted of:

« waste management and recycling including collection, transportation, freatment and sale or disposal of
waste oil, cooking oif and other liguid waste;

« industrial solutions including industrial cleaning, high pressure water blasting and manufaciure and lease
out of parts washers; and

« commerciat vehicles and parts importing and sales.

No significant changes in the nature of the activities of the consolidated entity occurred during the year.

Bividends - Transpacific Industries Group Lid

Details of dividends in respect of the financial year are as follows:

2008 2004
$000 $000

Special fully franked dividend declared on 8 March 2005 fo pre-IPO

shareholders 18,500 -

TOTAL DIVIDENDS DECLARED FOR PAYMENT 18,500 -

Al dividends pald and proposed are fuly franked.
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Review of Operations, Financial Position, Business Strategies and Prospects

During the year the Company listed on the Australian Stock Exchange (ASX} on 3 May 2005 pursuant fo a
prospectus dated 29 March 2005, At time of Hsting the company's capital was restructured to 200,000,000
ordinary shares.

Net profit after income tax atfributable to members of Transpacific Industries Group Lid for the vear ended

30 June 2005 was approximately $22.9 million. Comparison to the prior vear is not meaningful as the group was
restructured in the year ended 30 June 2004. The best comparison is against prospectus forecasts which were
set out in our FY05 results presentation of 31 August 20056 and set out earlier in this report.

The Company made a number of acquisitions during the year which are set out in the prospecius. Between
listing date and 30 June 2005 the Company made two material acquisitions being TranspacHic Waste Services
{formerly Waste Services NSW) and Transpacific Technical Services {formerly Cleanaway Yechnicat Services).

The Company has a sound financial position at 30 June 2005 generating strong cash flows fo fund its working
capital requirements and day to day cash flows. The cash and cash assets in a form readily convertible to cash
that existed on 3 May 2005 was used in a way consistent with the Company’s business objeclives. All debt
covenants have been satisfied and the Company has approximately $50 million available in unused debt facilities,
For business strategies and prospects refer below.

Earnings Per Share

The earnings per share presented below are stated using the post IPO share capital structure of 200,000,000
shares on the assumiption that this structure was in place for the whole year. To present earnings per share on
a basis otherwise would not be meaningful.

2008

CENTS

Basic eamnings per share 1.4
Diluted earnings per share 16.7

Significant Changes in the State of Affairs
Transpacific Induslries Group Lid was listed on the Australian Stock Exchange on 3 May 20605,

Prior to listing the company purchased a number of minority interests in the company's subsidiaries and
$22.6million in equity was issued as part settlement for the purchases. Capital was restructured for the purpose
of listing as outined in the prospectus.

There were no other material significant changes in the state of affairs of the Group that ocourred during the year.

Matters Subsequent to the End of the Financial Year

Since 30 June 2005 the Company has acquired a number of businesses, which individually and in aggregate are
not material.

No other matter or circumsiance has arisen since 30 June 2008 that has significantly affected, or may significantly
affect the operations of the consclidated entity, the results of those operations in future financial vears, or the
state of affairs of the consclidated entity in subsequent financial years.

Likely Developments and Expected Resulis of Operations

Material Hkely developments and expected resulis of operations of the consolidated enfity have been notified to
the market and include our investigation of further acquisitions and market opportunities.

Further information on likely developments in the operations of the consolidated entity and the expected results of

operations have not been included in this report because the directors believe it would be likely to result in
unreasonable prejudice to the consolidated entity.



Directors’ R@p@i’t {continued)

Environmental Regulation
The consolidated entity is subject fo significant environmental regulation in respect of its activities.
The consolidated entity holds environmental licences for its sites throughout Australia and New Zealand.

There were no material breaches of envircnmental statutory requirements and no material prosecutions during
the year.

Meetings of Directors

The number of meetings of directors {including meetings of committees of directors) heid during the financial year
and the number of meetings attended by each director were as follows:

AUDIT RISK MANAGERMENT NOMINATION &
AND COMPLIANCE REMUNERATION
BOARD MEETINGS™ COMMITTEE ** COMMITTEE"
MEETINGS MEETINGS MEETINGS
HELD WHILE NUMBER  HELD WHILE NUMBER  HELD WHILE NUMBER
DIRECTOR A DIRECTOR ATTENDED A MEMBER ATTENDED A MEMBER ATTENDED
T E Peabody 8 8 * 1 4
H L YWilson 8 5] * 1 1
J 4 Richards 5 5 1 1 - -
B R Brown 6 6 1 4 - -
G D Mudligan 6 5 1 1 *
R J Ruston 6 4 * - -
G F Sparks 5 5 > >
H W Grundef] 5 5 * *
D A Peabody 3 1 * *
8 G Smith 3 3 * *

* Mot a member of the relevant commities,

** While prepasing to list and since becoming & listed public company board meetings are held monthly. Previousty while the Company was
whoily-owned by Peabody family interests they ware held as required to satisfy the Corporations Act 20071, The committess were formally

astablished in connection with the company being listed. Previously, the commitiees functioned on an informal basis,

Director’s Interests in Share Capial

Particulars of directors’ beneficial interests in shares and options of Transpacific industries Group Lid as at the
date of this report are as follows:

OPTIONS GYER UNISSUED
ORDINARY SHARES ORINNARY SHARES
EXECUTIVE
Terry Peabody 76,267,611 6,950,000
Howard Witson - 1,606,000
Harold Grundel] 125,000 500,000
Geoff Sparks 83,060 500,060
NON-EXECUTIVE
John Richards 8,395,834 53,000
Bruce Brown 85,000 53,000
Graham Mulligan 30,000 50,000
Rod Ruston 31,250 50,000

* Includes shares issued as part payment for 2 minority interest in a controlied enlity of the Company.
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REMUNERATION REPORT
REMUNERATION POLICY

The key driver of Transpacific’s remuneration policy is o attract and retain top guality directors and executives to
ensure the continued success of the Group for the benefit of all our stakeholders.

The remuneration report is set out under the following miain headings:
A Principles used to defermine the nature and amount of remuneration
B Details of remuneration

C Service agreements

D Share-based compensation.

A Principles used to determing the nalure and amount of remuneration

The objective of the company's executive remuneration framework is to ensure remuneration for performance is
competitive and appropriate for the resulls delivered. The framework aligns executive remuneration with
achievement of strategic objectives and the creation of value for shareholders, and conforms with market best
practice for delivery of reward. In our business it is assumed that all environmental and safety requirements are
satisfied but there are penalties in our remuneration framework if they are not. The Board ensures that executive
remuneration satisfies the following key criteria for good corporate governance practices:

« competitiveness and reasonableness;
« accepiability and transparency fo shareholders; and

« performance finkage/afignment of executive compensation to financial results, safety requirements,
environmental compliance and contribution to continuous improvement inittatives.

The company has structured an executive remuneration framework that is market competitive and complementary
to the reward strategy of the organisation.

Alignment to shareholders’ interests:
» has economic profit as a core component of plan design;
« focuses on sustained growth in shareholder wealth, consisting of dividends and growth in share price;

« delivering constant return on assets as well as focusing the executive on key non-financial drivers of value;
and

« attracts and retains high calibre executives.
Alignment to program participants’ inferests:
« rewards capability and experience;
« reflects competitive reward for contribution to growth in shareholder wealth;
« provides a clear structure for earning rewards; and
« provides recognition for contribution.
The framework provides a mix of fixed and variable pay, and a blend of short and long-term incentives.

As executives gain seniority with the group, the balance of this mix shifts to a higher proportion of

“at risk” remuneration.

The overall level of executive remuneration takes into account the performance of the consolidated entity over a
number of years, with greater emphasis given fo the current and prior year.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing remuneration and performance and may
refer to external information on remuneration fo establish remuneration policy and levels.
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Non-executive directors
A short and tong-term remuneration structure is in place for the Non-executive directors:
« director fees;
« long-term incentives through pariicipation in the Transpacific Executive Share Option Plan.

The payment of directors fees is to reflect the demands which are made on, and the responsibilities of, the
directers. Non-executive directors' fees and payments are reviewed annually by the Board and are determined
within an aggregate directors’ fee pool limit, which is periodically recommended for approval by shareholders.
The maximum currently stands at $750,000 per annum, to be apportioned among the Non-executive directors as
the Board determines in its absolute discretion.

The four Non-executive directors pre TP listing were also granted TP share options which are discussed below.
Executives
Executive remuneration has four components:

« base pay and benefits;

« short-term performance incentives;

« long-term incentives through participation in the Transpaciic Executive Share Option Plan; and

» pther remuneration such as superannuation.

Base pay

Executives are offered a competitive base pay that comprises the fixed component of remuneration. Base pay
for senior executives is reviewed annually to ensure the executive's pay is competitive with the market.

An executive's pay is also reviewed on promaotion.

There are no guaranteed base pay increases included in any senior executives' confracts.

Benefits

Executives may receive benefits including car alfowances, mobile phone and car parking.

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits are not provided with the exception of statutory superannuation. Gther retrement benefits
may be provided direclly by the company if approved by shareholders but there are none at this ime.

Shori-term incentives (Ihcentive Compensation — IC}

Should the company achieve a pre-determined profit target set by management and approved by the Board then
an 1C pool Is available for allocation to executives during the annual review. Using a profit target ensures variable
reward is only available when value has been created for shareholders and when profit is consistent with the
business plan.

Each executive has a target |IC opportunity depending on the accountabilities of the role and organisation or
business unit performance. For senior executives the maximum target |1C bonus opportunity is 50% of total base
salary. Each year, the remuneration committee considers the approptriate targets and key performance indicators
{KPIs} to link the IC plan and the level of payout if fargets are mel. This includes seiting any maximum payout
under the 1C plan, and minimum levels of performance to frigger payment of an 1C.

For the year ended 34 June 2005, the KPls linked o short term incentive plans were based on group and
individual business objectives. These KPis are generic across the senior executive feam.

The Nomination and Remuneration commiittee is responsible for assessing whether the KPls are met. To help
make this assessment, the commitiee receives detailed reporis on performance from management.

{Cs may be adjusted up or down in line with under or over achievement against the target performance levels.
This is at the discretion of the Nomination and Remuneration committee.
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Cash 1C {bonuses} are payable on 15 September each year after the financial year's results are compiled, audited
and released to the market. This ensures transparency and shareholders can see the link between shareholder
returns and employee remuneration.

Transpacific Executive Share Oplion Plan

information on the Transpacific Executive Share Option Plan is set out on page 58 and was set ouf in the
Prospectus. In short, however, the options granted to the Non-executive directors and certain executives in
connection with the PO vest over three years (Tor practical purposes commencing 31 August 2008} providing
EBITA forecasts for year ending 30 June 2006 set out in the Transpacific Prospectus dated 29 March 2005 are
met or exceeded. On achieving this target, 756% of the options vest if total shareholder return {TP! share price
increment over offer price plus dividend) totals at least 15% per annum on a cumulative basis and 25% vest if the
volume weighted average price of TPI shares has cutperformed the S&P/ASX 200 {less financialsby 5% on a
cumulative basis since the date the Company listed on the official list. The oplions granted to date were issued
for no consideration and there have been no further options issued. From time fo time, the Board will recommend
that further options be issued in order to attract, incentivise and reward executives and Non-executive directors.
Staff eligible to participate in the plan are senior management and Non-executive directors nominated by the
Nomination and Remuneration commitiee.

B Details of remuneration

Amounis of remuneration

Details of the remuneration of each director of Transpacific industries Group Lid and each of the five executives
of the Company and the consclidated entity who received the highest remuneration for the year ended

30 June 2005 are set out in the following tables. You will see the base fixed componenis and the “at risk”

performance related components discussed above. The options have been costed in accordance with
methodology sef out below.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS OF TRANSPACIFIC INDUSTRIES GROUP LTD

EGUITY POST
PRIVARY COMPENSATION EMPLOYMENT
FEE/
SALARY BONUS OTHER OPTIONS SUPER TOTAL
8 $ 8 $ 5 8
EXECUTIVE

Terry Peabody 267,898 - 19,045 - 24,043 311,886
Howard Wilson* 297,006 152,400 149,300 32,571 45 356 678,633
Harold Grundell 202,170 102,600 27,697 16,288 27,429 376,182
Geoff Sparks 202,170 102,800 21,480 16,288 27,428 369,975

NON-EXECUTIVE
John Richards 13,054 - - 1,628 1175 15,858
Bruce Brown 15,280 - - 1,628 1.376 18,205
Graham Mulligan 28,875 - - 1,628 2,599 33,103
Rod Ruston 18,589 - - 1,629 - 20,218
1,045,052 357,600 218,432 71,659 129,407 1,822,150

Emoluments for the Non-executive directors do not represent a full year as the Non-executive directors were
appointed progressively through the year in connection with the Company's listing.

* Other benefits includes $106,206 relating to non-recurring other benefits,
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Emoluments of the five most highly paid executive officers of the company and Consolidated entity

EQUHTY POST
BRIMARY COMPENSATION EMPLOYMENT

SALARY BONUS OTHER OPTIONS SUPER TOTAL

g $ g $ § $

Stewart Smith 177,311 80,765 23,008 24 429 23,227 328,738

Paul Glavac 183,336 100,600 27,237 16,288 25,500 352,359

Terry Woods 177,586 100,600 27,222 16,286 26458 347,652

Nick Badyk 163,850 30,000 38,656 16,288 24,337 270,168
Trevor Coonan
{commenced 4

October 2004} 143,989 100,600 4,100 16,286 21,058 286,334

R46.072 410,765 120,281 RO,573 118,481 1,585,152

All executives received 100% of their applicable 1C {bonus) except for one person who received 30%.

C Service agreements

Remuneration and other terms of employment for the Executive Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and the
executives specified above are formalised in executive service agreements. Each of these agreements provide
for a performance-related cash 1C (bonuses), other benefits including car allowances, and participation, when
eligible, in the Transpacific Executive Share Option Plan. The agreements are ongoing and reviewed on a
perodic basis. Terry Peabody's and Howard Wilson's agreement may be terminated on six months’ notice. The
other agreements may be terminated by the Company or the executive at any time on one months’ nolice. There
are no non-statutory termination benefits provided for in the service agreements.

[ Share based compensation

Options have been granted under the Transpacific Executive Share Option Plan which was approved by
shareholders in March 2005. These oplions were issued in connection with the IPO and no further options have
been issued. The option terms are set out above.

VALUE PER
EXERCISE OPTION AT
DATE OPTIONS GRANTED EXPIRY DATE PRICE GRANT DATE DATE EXERCISABLE
3 May 2005 31 July 2008 $2.40 0.34  33.33% after 31 August 2006
3 May 2005 31 July 2009 $2.40 0.43  33.33% after 31 August 2067
3 May 2005 31 July 2008 $2.40 0.49  33.33% after 31 August 2008

Options granted under the plan carry no dividend or voiing rights. When exercisable, each option is convertible
intc one ordinary share. The exercise price is $2.40 per share.

The amounts disciosed for emoluments relating fo oplions above are the assessed fair values at grant date of
options granted to directors and other executives, allocated over the period from grant date to vesting date. Fair
values at grant date are independently determined using a Black-Scholes option pricing model that takes info
account the exercise price, the term of the oplion, the vesting and performance criteria, the impact of dilution, the
non-tradeable nature of the oplion, the share price at grant date and expected volatility of the underlying share,
the expected dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate for the term of the option.
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Details of options over ordinary shares in the company provided as remuneration fo each director of Transpacific
industries Group Lid and each of the five specified executives of the consolidated entfity are set out below,

REMUNERATION NUMBER OF OETIONS

CONSISTING GRANTED DURING THE NUMBER OF OBTIONS

OF OPTIONS™ YEAR * VESTED DURING THE YEAR
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Terry Peabody - - -
Howard Witson 4.8% 1,600,060 -
Harold Grundel] 4.3% 500,000 -
Geoff Sparks 4.4% 500,000 -
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
John Richards 10.3% 50,000 -
Bruce Brown 8.9% 50,000 -
Graham Mulligan 4.9% 50,000 -
Rod Ruston 8.1% 50,000 -
SPECIFIED EXECUTIVES
Stewart Smith 7.4% 750,000 -
Paul Glavac 4.6% 508,000 -
Terry Woods 4.7% 500,000 -
Nick Badyk 5.0% 500,000 -
Trevor Coonan 5.7% 500,000 -

* The options are exercisable in three equal franches. The value of the options in each franche is detailed above.
No amounts were paid or are payable in respect of the oplions granted.

**Value of options as a percentage of tolal remuneration; this may be distorted where the directors and
execulives were engaged for pari years.

Shares Under Option

Unissued ordinary shares of Transpacific Industries Group Lid under option at the date of this report are set out
below. These were disclosed in the prospectus. Brenzil Pty Lid is associated with Peabody family interests and
those options are intended fo enable the Peabody family to retain effective control as the Non-executive director
and execulives options are exercised. As disclosed in the prospecius the Brenzil oplions have different share
issue prices and are not part of Terry Peabody's remuneration; they are not linked to his service but granied fo
enable the Peabody family to retain 51% ownership of the Company.

NUMBER
DATE OETIONS GRANTED EXPIRY DATE ISEUE PRICE OF SHARES 5’5353
3 May 2005 — Non-executive Directors and
Executives 31 July 2009 $2.40 6,950,000
3 May 2005 - Brenzil Pty Ltd 31 July 2008 $2.76 to $3.65 6,850,000

Shares Issued on the Exercise of Options

No ordinary shares of Transpacific Industries Group Lid were issued during the vear ended 30 June 2005 on the
exercise of options granted under the Transpacific Industries Group Lid Executive Share Option Plan or Brenzil
Pty Ltd Option Deed.
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Birectors and Officers insurance

During the financial year Transpacific Indusiries Group Lid paid insurance premiums fo insure the directors and
officers of the Company.

The liabitiies insured are legal cosis that may be incurred in defending civit or criminal proceedings that may be
brought against the officers in their capacity as officers of enfities in the consolidated enfity, and any other
payments arising from liabilities incurred by the officers in connection with such proceedings, other than where
such liabilities arise out of conduct involving a wilful breach of duty by the officers or the improper use by the
officers of their position or of informiation to gain advantage for themselves or someocne else or to cause detriment
to the Company. H is not possible to apportion the premium between amounts relating fo the insurance against
tegal costs and those relating o other liabilities.

Proceedings on Behalf of the Company

No person has applied to the Court under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 for leave to bring proceedings
on behalf of the Company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the Company is a party, for the purposes
of taking responsibility on behailf of the Company for all or part of those proceedings.

No proceedings have been brought or intervened in on behalf of the Company with leave of the Court under
sechon 237 of the Corporations Act 2001,

Kon-Audit Services

The Company may decide to employ the auditor on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties where
the auditor's expertise and experience with the Company and/or the consclidated enfity are important.

The Board of Directors has considered the position and, in accordance with the advice received from the Audit
and Risk Management and Compliance Commiltee is satisfied that the provision of the non-audit services is
compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001, The
directors are salisfied that the provision of non-audit services by the auditor did not compromise the auditor
independence requirements of the Corporation Act 2001 for the following reasons:
« all non-audit services have been reviewed by the Audit and Risk Management and Compliance Commiitiee
to ensure they do not impact the impartiality and objectivity of the auditor and;
« none of the services undermine the general principles relating fo auditor independence as set out in
Professional Statement F1, including reviewing or auditing the auditor's own work, acting in a management

or a decision-making capacity for the company, acting as advocate for the company or joinfly sharing
gconomic risk and rewards.
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Details of the amounts paid or payable to the auditor (Bentleys MR! Brisbane Partnership) for audit and non-audit
services is set out below,

CONSOUDATED PARENT ENTITY
2008 2004 2008 2004
§000 $000 §000 §000
Bentleys MRI Brisbane Partnership 246 112 - -
Cverseas auditors associated with Bentleys MR 33 24 - -
279 136 - -
Amounts received for other services:
Bentleys MRI Brisbane Partnership and Bentleys
MRI (Qld} Pty Lid 201 40 - -
480 178 - -

A copy of the auditors’ independence declaration as required under section 3070 of the Corporations Act 2001 is
set out on page 34.

Rounding of Amounts

The Company is of a kind referred to in Class Order 98/0100 issued by the Australian Securities and Investments
Commission, relating fo the “rounding off” of amounts in the directors’ report and financial statements. Amounis
have been rounded off to the nearest thousand dollars in accordance with that Class Order.

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

T E Peabody
Chairman
Brisbane, 12 September 2008
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Statermnents of Financial Performance

Forthe Year Ended 30 June 2005

CONSOLIBATED

PARENT ENTITY

2008 2004 2008 2004

NOTES $000 $000 $000 §000
Revenue from ordinary activities 2 483,018 258,008 19,463 -
EXPENSES FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
Cost of sales (264 951) {177,238) - -
Employee expenses {57,245) {25.643) - -
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 3 (21,9589) {9,263) - -
Borrowing costs 3 {9,915) {3.802) {1,161} -
Net book value of non-current asset disposals {15,070} - - -
Repairs and maintenance {10,588) {3,464) - -
Fuel purchases {8,645) {2,159) - -
Leasing charges 3 {5,738) {3,329) - -
Freight costs {4,878) {1,343) - -
Waste disposal {4,818) {1,397} - -
Initial public offering costs 3 (4,449) - (4,448} -
Other expenses {39.160) {15,096) - -
Share of net profits of associates accounted for
using the equity method 1,305 185 -
Profit from ordinary activities before income
tax expense 36,927 14,328 13,913 -
income tax expense relating to ordinary activittes 4 {12,078) {4,774) (7,080) {3,894}
Net Profit from ordinary activities after income
tax expense 24,849 9,554 6,833 {3,804)
Net profit atiributable to outside equity interests {1.968) (879) - -
Net profit attributable to members of
Transpacific industries Group Ltd 22,881 8,675 6,833 {3.894)
Net exchange difference on transiation of
financial reports of foreign contrelled entities {39%) - - -
Net increase in asset revaluation reserve 9,322 - - -
Total revenues, expenses and valuation
adjustments attributable to members and
recognised directly in equity 8,923 - - -
Total changes in equity from non-owner related
transactions attributable to members of
Transpacific Industries Group Lid 31,804 8,675 6,833 {3.894)
in accordance with AASB 1027:
Basic earnings par share 38 19.5¢
Diluted earnings per share {cents per share) 38 19.1¢
Assuming capital restructure in place for full year:
Basic earnings per share 38 11.4e
Diluted earnings per share 39 10.7¢

The above statements of financial perormance should be read in comjunction with the atcompanying notes.



Staterments of Financial Position

As at 30 June 2005
CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY
2006 2004 2004 2004

NOTES Fo00 $000 §000 §o00
ASSETS
Current assels
Cash assels 5 37,754 17,813 12,608 -
Raceivables 8 82 502 48,812 127 662 -
Inventories 7 86,309 75,135 - -
Other assets 8 5,870 3,031 508 -
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 186,435 144,791 140,780 -
Non-current assels
Invesiments accounted for using the equity
method 9 7,387 6,491 - -
Other financial assets 10 99 15H 74,073 74,073
Property, plant and equipment " 161,750 129,358 - -
Intangible assets 12 63,298 31,329 - -
Deferred tax assets 13 11,804 15458 8,054 10,891
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 244,338 182,651 82,127 84,964
TOTAL ASSETS 430,773 327,442 222,867 84,964
LIABILITIES
Current ffabilities
Payables 14 80,207 51.818 383 2,917
Interest bearing liabilities 15 34,837 36,933 - -
Tax liabilities 16 7,618 845 5,683 13
Provisions 17 24,573 7,596 12,000 -
Other 18 7,354 1,874 - -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 154 687 89,086 18,066 2,930
Non-current llabilities
Payables 19 7,415 18,554 - -
Interest bearing liabilities 20 132,688 167 593 108,800 -
Deferred tax liabilities 21 2,858 5,071 1,012 2438
Provisions 22 10,283 2,250 6,560 -
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 153,242 133,468 114,312 2,438
TOTAL LIABILITIES 307,928 232,534 132,378 5,368
NET ASSETS 122,844 94,908 90,529 78,586
EQUITY
Contributed equity 23 96,673 74,073 96,873 74,073
Reserves 24 8,823 - - -
Retained profits 25 14,565 10,231 {6,144} 5,623
Equity attributable to members of
Transpacific Industries Group Ltd 120,161 84,304 90,529 79,586
Outside equity interests 26 2,683 16,604 - -
TOTAL EQUITY 122,844 94,908 90,529 78,596

The shove staterents of financial position should be read in sonjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statements of Cash Flows

Forihe Year Ended 30 June 2005

CONSOUIDATED PARENT ENTITY
2008 2004 2008 2304
NOTES §000 §000 $000 F000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers (inciusive of G8T) 490,602 272,721 - -
Payments to suppliers and employees {inclusive
of G8T) {413,478) {282171) - -
77124 10,550 - -
Government grant received 700 - - -
Interest received 1,060 686 - -
Borrowing costs paid (10,788} {3,183) {1.227) -
Income taxes paid {3.468} (3.274) - -
NET CASH PROVIDED BYA{USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 31a 64,628 4,778 {1,227) -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net cash acquired from wholly owned
subsidiaries in connection with restructure e - 5,208 - -
Payments for purchase of equity and other
investments, net of cash acquired Katy {6,373} - - -
Payments for purchase of businesses 3Me {22,832) {590) - -
Payments for property, plant and equipment (25,404} {7,734} - -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment 15,281 226 - -
NET CASH (USED IN} INVESTING ACTIVITIES (39,148} {2,890) - -
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES -
Receipts on behalf of suppliers 5,168 - -
Net movement in frade and vendor finance {2,967) 12,730 - -
Payment of IPO costs {1,949) - {1,949} -
Repayment of bank loans (47.625) {7.025) - -
Proceeds from bank loans 106,900 - 106,800 -
Repayment of lease liabilities {5,599) {2,321} - -
Repayment of loans to related parties (58,620} - - -
Loans made to controlled entities - - {91,115} -
NET CASH PROVIDED BYA{USED IN)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (4,992) 3,384 13,835 -
NET INCREASE IN CASH HELD 20,488 5273 12,800 -
Cash at the beginning of the financial year 17 665 12,382 - -
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash (399) - - -
CASH AY THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 5 37,754 17,665 12,609 -

The above statements of cash Tows shiould be read in sonjanction with the sccompanying noles.



Notes to the Financial Statements

Forihe Financial Year Ended 30 June 2005

1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards, other
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, Urgent issues Consensus Views
and the Corporations Act 2001.

The financial report has been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except for certain assets
which, as nofed, are at valuation. Unless otherwise stated, the accounting policies adopted are consistent with
those of previcus years and the acguired entities.

The Australian Accounting Sfandards Board (AASB) is adopling Australian equivalents o International Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRS} for application to reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005. The AASB
has issued Ausfralian equivalents fo IFRS, and the Urgent Issues Group has issued interpretations corresponding
to |ASR interpretations originated by the International Financial Reporing interpretations Committee or the former
Standing Interpretations Commitiee. The adoption of Australian equivalents to IFRS will be reflected in the
consolidated entity’s financial statements for the half-year ending 31 December 2005 and the year ending

30 June 2006. Information about how the transition to Australian equivalentis to IFRS Is being managed, and the
key differences in accounting policies that are expected to arise, is set out in Note 43.

{A) PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION
The consolidated financiatl statementis incorporate the assels and liablliies of alt entities controlled by
Transpaciic Industries Group Ltd ("company" or "parent entity™) as at 30 June 2005 and the results of alt
controlled entities for the year then ended. Transpacific Industries Group Ltd and its controlled entities
together are referred to in this financial report as the consolidated entity. The effects of all fransactions
between entities in the consolidated entity are eliminated in full. Outside equity interests in the resulis and
equity of controlied entities are shown separately in the consolidated statement of financial performance and
statement of financial position respectively.

Where controt of an enfity is obtained during a nancial year, its results are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date on which control commences. Where control of an entity ceases during a
financial year its results are included for that part of the year during which control existed.

Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the eguity
method. Under this method, the consolidated entity’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses after tax
of associates is recognised in the consolidated statement of financial performance, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in consolidated reserves. The cumulative
post-acquisition movemenis are adjusted against the cost of the investment. Associates are those entifies
over which the consolidated entity exercises significant influence, but not control.

(B) TAXES

{y  Income tax
Tax effect accounting procedures are followed whereby the income tax expense in the statement of
financial performance is matched with the accounting profit after allowing for permanent differences.
The future tax benefit relating to tax losses is not carried forward as an asset unless the benefit is
virtually certain of realisation. Income tax on cumulative timing differences is set aside to the deferred
income tax or the future income tax benefit accounts at the rates which are expected to apply when
those timing differences reverse.

Transpacific industries Group Lid and its wholly-owned Australian confrolled enfities have been
consolidated for fax purposes under the tax consolidation legislation from 1 July 2002.
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(B) TAXES (CONTINUED)

{H

(i)

fncome tax (continued)

As a consequence, Transpacific Industries Group Litd, as the head entity in the tax consolidated group,
recognises current and deferred tax amounis relating to transactions, events and balances of the
wholly-owned Australian controlled entities in this group as if those transactions, events and balances
were its own, in addition to the current and deferred fax amounts arising in relation fo its own
transactions, events and balances. The consolidated group has not entered into a tax sharing
agreement. The deferred tax balances recognised by the parent entity in relation to wholly-owned
entities joining the tax consolidated group are measured based on their carrying amounts at the level of
the tax consolidated group before the implementation of the tax consolidation regime, with one
exception. The deferred fax balances relating fo assets that had thelr tax values reset on joining the ax
consolidated group, have been remeasured based on the carrying amount of those assets at the
tax-consclidated group level and their reset tax values. The remeasurement adiustments to these
deferred tax balances are also recognised in the consofidated financial statements as income fax
expense or revenue, or as direct debits to the asset revaluation reserve to the extent the adjustments
relate to the revaluation of assets. The impact on the income tax expense for the year is disclosed in
Note 4.

Goods and services tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except:

aj where the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item as applicable; and

by receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the statements of financial position.

Cash flows are included in the statements of cash flows on a gross basis and the GS8T component of
cash flows arising from investing activitles, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority are classified as operating cash flows.

Commiitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of G8T recoverable from, or payable
to, the taxation authority.

(C) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

{H

(i)

Translation of foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are initially translated into Australian currency at the rate of exchange at
the date of the transaction. Al balance date amounis payable and receivable in foreign currencies are
transiated to Australian currency at rates of exchange current at that date. Resulting exchange
differences are recognised in determining the profit or loss for the year.

Specific hedges

Hedging is undertaken in order fo avold or minimise possible adverse financial effects of movements in
exchange rates. (Gains or costs arising upon entry into a hedging transaction intended {o hedge the
purchase or sale of goods or services, together with subsequent exchange gains or losses resulting from
those transactions are deferred in the statement of financial position from the inception of the hedging
transaction up to the date of the purchase or sale and included in the measurement of the purchase or
sale. The net amounts receivable or payable under the hedging fransaction are also recorded in the
statement of financiat position. Any gains or losses arising on the hedging transaction after the
recognition of the hedged purchase or sale are included in the statement of financial performance.



Notes to the Financial Statements

Forihe Financial Year Ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

{C) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION {CONTINUED)

(i)

(it}

40841

Specific hedges {continued)

In the case of hedges of menetary items, exchange gains or losses are brought to account in the
financial year in which the exchange rates change. (ains or cosis arising at the time of entering into
such hedging transactions are brought to account in the statement of financial performance over the lives
of the hedges.

When anticipated purchase or sale transactions have been hedged, actual purchases or sales which
occur during the designated hedged period are accounted for as having been hedged until the amounts
of those fransactions in the designated period are fully allocated against the hedged amounts.

If the hedged transaction is not expected to occur as originally designated, or if the hedge is no

longer expected fo be effective, any previcusly deferred gains or losses are recognised as revenue of
expense immediately.

If the hedging transaction is terminated prior to its maturity dale and the hedged transaction is still
expected {o ccour as designated, deferral of any gains and losses which arose prior o termination
continues and those gains and losses are included in the measurement of the hedged transaction.

In circumstances where a hedging transaction is terminated prior to maturity because the hedged
transaction is no longer expected to ccour as designated, any previously deferred gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of termination.

Translation of financial reports of overseas operations

For foreign controlied entities that are self-sustaining, its assets and liablliies are translated into
Australian currency at rates of exchange current at balance date, while its revenues and expenses are
transiated at the average of rates ruling during the year. Exchange differences arising on fransiation are
taken to the foreign currency transiation reserve.

Lipon disposal or partial disposal of a self-sustaining foreign operation, the batance of the foreign
currency transiation reserve relating to the operation, or to the part disposed of, is transferred fo retained
profits.

For foreign controlied entities that are integrated with the activities of other entities in the group, the
assets, labilitles and equity of the entity are consolidated into the controlling entity using the temporal
method of franslation whereby non-monetary assets and liabilities and equity items, including revenue
and expenses, are franslated using historic rates of exchange, and monetary assels and liabiliies are
translated using rates of exchange current at the reporting date. Any resultant exchange differences are
recorded as revenue or expense by the controlled entity.



(DY ACQUISITION OF ASBETS

The purchase method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets regardiess of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. Costis measured as the fair value of the assets given up, shares
issued or liabilities undertaken at the date of acquisition plus incidental costs directly atiributable to the
acquisition. Where equity instruments are issued in an acqguisition, the value of the insfruments is their
market price as at the acquisition date, unless the notional price at which they could be placed in the market
is a betier indicator of fair value. ¥ransaction cosis arising on the issue of equity instruments are recognised
directly in equity.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted fo their present value as at the date of the acquisition. The discount rate used is the entity's
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

Goodwill is brought fo account on the basis described in note T{MYi).

Where an entity or operation is acquired and the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired, including
any liability for restructuring costs, exceeds the cost of acauisition, the difference, representing a discount on
acquisition, is accounted for by reducing proporfionately the fair values of the non-monetary assets acquired
uniti the discount is eliminated. Where, affer reducing the recorded amounts of the non-monetary assets
acquired to zero, a discount balance remains it is recognised as revenue in the statement of financial
performance.

REVENUE RECOGNITION
Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns, trade allowances and duties and taxes paid. Revenue is
recognised for the major business aclivities as follows:

{i Waste management and recycling
Revenue is recognised upon the delivery of goods or services fo customers. Waste treatment revenue is
not recorded untll the waste has been treated.

{H} Industrial solutions
Contract revenue is measured by reference to labour hours incurred to date and actual costs incurred.
Other revenue is recognised upon the delivery of goods or services fo customers.

{iy Commercial vehicles
Revenue is recognised upon the delivery of goods or services {o customers.

(v} Interest
Interest revenue is recognised on an accrual basis taking into account the interest rates applicable to the
financial assels.

{v} Dividends
Dividend revenue is recognised when the right to receive a dividend has been established. Dividends
received from associates are accounted for in accordance with the equity method of accounting.

{vi} Other revenue
Gther revenue is recognised when the right to receive the revenue has been established.

RECEIVABLES

All trade debtors are recognised at the amounts receivable as they are due for setflement no more than

30 days from the date of statement. On special occasions the commercial vehicles group may give extended
terms. Collectibility of trade debliors is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debis which are known to be
uncollectible are written off. A provision for doubtful debis is raised when some doubt as fo collection exists
and in any event when the debt is more than 120 days overdue.



Notes to the Financial Statements

Forihe Financial Year Ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

{G) INVENTORIES
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct
{labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on
the basis of normal operaling capacity. Cosis are assigned to individual items of stock on the basis of
standard costs which reflect actual costs and vehicles are valued at actual cost.

RECOVERABLE AMOUNT

The recoverable amount of an asset is the net amount expected o be recovered through the cash inflows
and outflows arising from its continued use and subsegquent disposal.

z

Where the carrying amount of a non-current asset is greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is written
down fo its recoverable amount. Where net cash inflows are derived from a group of assets working
together, recoverable amount is determined on the basis of the relevant group of assets. The decrement in
the carrying amount is recognised as an expense in net profit or loss in the reporting period in which the
recoverable amount write-down occurs.

The expected net cash flows included in determining recoverable amounts of non-current assets have not
been discounted fo their present values using a markel-determined, risk-adjusted discount rate.

(I} REVALUATIONS
Subsegquent to initial recognition as assets, land and buildings are measured at fair value being the amounis
for which the assets could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length
fransaction. Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of each
piece of land and each building does not differ materially from its fair value at the reporting date. Annual
assessments are made by the directors, supplemented by independent assessments at least every
three years.

Revaluation increments are credited direclly to the asset revaluation reserve, except thai, 1o the extent that
an increment reverses a revaluation decrement in respect of that class of asset previously recognised as an
expense in net profit or loss, the increment is recognised immediately as revenue in net profit or loss.

Revaluation decrements are recognised immediately as expenses in nef profit or loss, except that, to the
extent that a credit balance exists in the asset revaluation reserve in respect of the same class of assels,
they are debited directly to the asset revaluation reserve.

Revaluation increments and decrements are offset against one another within a class of non-current assets,
but not otherwise.

Potential capital gains tax is not faken into account in determining revaluation amounis unless it is expected
that a liabitity for such tax will crystafiise.

{J) DEPRECIATION OF PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis fo write off the net cost or revalued amount of each item of
property, plant and equipment (excluding land) over its expected useful e to the consolidated endity.
Estimates of remaining usefud lives are made on a regular basis for all assets, with annual reassessments for
major items. The expected useiul lives are as follows:
Buildings 25 - 40 years
Plant and equipment 2.5- 20 years

Where items of plant and equipment have separately identifiable components which are subject to regular
replacement, those componenis are assigned useful lives distinct from the item of plant and eguipment to
which they relate.

The aircraft was not depreciated during the year as it was earmarked for sale and therefore stated at its
recoverable amount. The aircraft was sold on 30 March 20085,
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(K)

LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS

The cost of improvements to or on leasehold properties is amortised over the unexpired period of the lease or
the estimated useful life of the Improvement to the consolidated entity, whichever is the shorter. Leasehold
improvements held at the reporting date are being amortised over 10 years.

LEASES

A distinction is made between finance leases which effectively transfer from the lessor to the lessee
substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of leased non-current assets, and operating
leases under which the lessor effectively retains substantially all such risks and benefiis.

{I} Finance leases
Finance leases are capitalised. A lease asset and liability are established at the present value of
minimum lease payments. Lease payments are allocated beiween the principal component of the lease
liabitity and the interest expense.

The lease asset is amortised on a straight line basis over the term of the lease, or where it is likely that
the consclidated entity will obtain ownership of the asset, the Iife of the asset. Lease assels held at the
reporting date are being amortised over periods ranging from 5 to 10 years.

{ify Operating leases

Operating lease payments are charged fo the statement of financial performance in the periods in which
they are incurred, as this represents the paitern of benefits derived from the leased assets.

(M) INTANGIBLES

{h  Goodwi
Where an entity or operation is acquired, the identifiable net assets acquired are measured at fair value.
The excess of the fair value of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired, including any liability for restructuring costs, is brought to account as goodwill and amortised
on a straight line basis over the period during which the benefits are expected to arise, which vary from
5 fo 20 years for the carrying amounts of goodwill relating fo acquisitions fo date. The cost of acquisition
is discounted as described in note H{D) where seitlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred.

{i} Licences
Significant costs associated with patents, trademarks and licences are deferred and amortised on a
straight line basis over the periods of their expected benefil, which vary from 5 to 10 vears.
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
These amounts represent liabiliies for goods and services provided fo the consolidated entity prior to the end
of the financial year and which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usuaily paid within 30 days
of racognition.
INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES
Loans are carried at their principal amounts which represent the present value of future cash flows
assoctated with servicing the debt. Unpaid interest is accrued over the period it becomes due and is
recorded as part of other creditors.
DIVIDENDS PAYABLE
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, determined or publicly recommended by the
directors on or before the end of the financial year but not distributed at balance date.



Notes to the Financial Statements

Forihe Financial Year Ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

{Q) REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE
Plant of the consolidated entity is reguired to be overhauled on a regular basis. This is managed as part of
an ongoing major cyclical maintenance program. The costs of this maintenance are charged as expenses as
incurred, except where they relate o the replacement of a component of an asset, in which case the costs
are capitalised and depreciated in accordance with note 1{J). Other rouline operating maintenance, repair
and minor renewal costs are also charged as expenses as incurred.

(R} EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

{y Wages and salaries, annual leave and sick lsave
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and vesting sick leave
expected {o be setlied within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in other creditors and
provision for employee entittements in respect of employees’ services up to the reporting date and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabiliies are settled. Liabilities for non-vesting
sick leave are recognised when the leave is taken and measured at the rates paid or payable.

{if} Long service leave
The Hability for long service leave expected to be setlled within 12 months of the reporiing date is
recognised in the provision for employee benefits and Is measured in accordance with {i} above. The
liability for long service leave expected (o be settled more than 12 months from the reporting date is
recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the present value of expected future
payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up io the reporting date.
Consideration is given to expected fulure wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures
and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market vields at the reporting
date on natlonat government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that mateh, as closely as
possible, the estimated future cash ocutflows.

{H} Short-term incentive compensation {ICs)bonus plans
A liability for emiployee benefits in the form of ICs is recognised when the nomination and remuneration
committee determines that IC criteria has been achieved and an amount is pavable in accordance with
the terms of the IC plan.

Liabilities for 1Cs are expected to be settied within 12 months and are measured at the amounis
expected to be paid when they are seitled.

Employee benefit on-costs

Employee benefil on-costs, including payroll tax, are recognised and included in employee benefit
liabilittes and costs when the employee benefits to which they relate are recognised as liabilities.

{iv

—r

{v} Equity based compensation
Equity-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via the Transpacific Industries Group
Executive Share Oplion Scheme.

No accouniing entries are made in relation to the Transpacific industries Group Executive Share Option
Scheme untit options are exercised, at which time the amounis receivable from employess are
recognised in the statement of financial position as share capital. The amounts disclosed for
remuneration of directors and executives include the assessed fair values of oplions at the date they
were granted.
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(S)

BORROWING COSTS
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing cosis
include:

. interest on bank overdrafts and shori-term and long-term borrowings, including amounts paid or
received on interest rate swaps;

. amortisation of discounts or premiums relating to borrowings;

. amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings; and

. finance lease charges.

No borrowing costs have been capitalised.

SERVICE WARRANTIES

Provision is made for the estimated liability on all products sl under warranty at balance date. The amount
of the provision is the present value of the estimated cash flows expected fo be required fo setile the
warranty obligations, having regard to the service warranty experience and the risks of the warranty
obligations. The provision is not discounted fo ifs present value as the effect of discounting is not material.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes deposits at call with financial institutions and
other highly liquid invesiments with short periods to maturity which are readily convertible to cash on hand
and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of outstanding bank overdrafls.
INVESTMENTS

Interests in listed and unfisted securities, other than conirofled entities and associates in the consolidated
financial statements, are brought to account at cost and dividend income is recognised in the statement of
financiatl performance when receivable in accordance with Note 1{E}{v}). Conirolled entities and assoclates
are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements as set out in Note 1{A}.

(W) DERIVATIVES

As a result of its operating and investing activities, the consolidated entity is exposed to changes in interest
rates and foreign exchange rates. The consolidated entity uses interest rate swaps and forward foreign
exchange contracts fo hedge these risks in certain instances. Derivative financial instruments are not held
for speculafive purposes.

{} Forward exchange confracis
The consolidated entity enters into forward exchange contracts where it agrees fo buy or sell specified
amounis of foreign currencies in the future at a predetermined exchange rate. The objective is to match
the confract with anticipated future cash flows for purchases in foreign currencies, to protect the
consolidated entity against the possibility of loss from future exchange rate fluctuations. Forward
exchange contracts are accounted for as set out in Note 1{C).

(i} Interest rate swaps
The consclidated entity enters into interest rate swap agreemenis that are used to convert the variable
interest rate of its short-ferm borrowings to medium term fixed interest rates. The swaps are entered into
with the objective of reducing the risk of rising interest rates.

It is the company's policy not to recognise interest rate swaps in the financial statements. Net receipts
and payments are recognised as an adiustment to interest expense.



Notes to the Financial Statements

Forihe Financial Year Ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

(X} CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
Issued and paid up capital is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received by the company. Any
transacton costs incurred by the company arising on the issue of ordinary shares are recognised directly in
equity as a reduction of the share proceeds received.

{Y} INITIAL PUBLIC OFFER (PO} COSTS
In accordance with the prospectus the Company paid 49% and the vending shareholders paid 51% of the
IPO costs. New equity was not raised so these costs were expensed in the statement of Binancial
performance.
{2} EARNINGS PER SHARE
{i Basic earnings per share
Basic eamings per share is determined by dividing net profit after income tax atiributable to members of
the company, excluding any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in
ordinary shares issued during the year.

{ify Diluted eamings per share
Dilvted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares and the weighied average number of shares assumed to have been issued for
no consideration in relation to dilutive potential ordinary shares.
For the vear ended 36 June 2005 Earnings Per Share has been calculated on the basis referred fo above
and on the capital structure following listing on the ASX as this is considered more meaningful and
reflective of the ongoing position of the Company.

(ALY ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS
The company is of a kind referred fo in Class Order 88/0100, issued by the Australian Securitles and
Invesimenis Commission, relating fo the "rounding off” of amounis in the financial report. Amcunts in the
financiat report have been rounded off in accordance with that Class Order to the nearest thousand dollars,
or in cerfain cases, to the nearest dollar.

(AB} COMPARATIVES
Where necessary comparatives have been reclassified and repositioned for consistency with current year
disclosures. The Group was restructured on 28 February 2004 and therefore the 30 June 2004 comparatives
do not reflect the same bustness as for the year ended 30 June 2005.
Earnings per share comparatives have not been provided as AASB 1027 "Earnings Per Share" was not
applicable to the consolidated entity in the previous financial yvear.

Individual comparatives for directors' and executives’ remuneration are not disclosed as AASE 1046
*Director and Executive Disclosure by Disclosing Entities” was not applicable fo the consolidated entity in the
previous financial year.
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CONSOLIBATED

PARENT ENTITY

2005 2004 2008 2004
$000 $000 §000 §000
2 Revenue
REVENUE EROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Sale of Goods and Services 455 592 251,135 - -
Product Stewardship Gil benefits 6,221 1,815 - -
Government grants {hydrogenation) 700 - - -
Other revenue 2,334 1,808 - -
464,847 254,859 - -
REVENUE FROM OQUTSIDE THE OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Interest revenue
- related parties 57 - 941 -
- other parties 1,603 688 22 -
Dividends — wholly-owned conidrolled entities - - 18,500 -
Foreign currency exchange gains 1,850 1,037 - -
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 15,261 226 - -
18,171 1,848 19,463 -
REVENUE FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES 483,018 256,908 19,463 -




Notes to the Financial Statements

Forihe Financial Year Ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

CONSOUDATED PARENT ENTITY
2008 2004 2008 2304
NOTES $000 $000 §000 §000
3 Expenses and Losses/(Gains)
Profit from ordinary activities before income tax expense
includes the following spedcific net gains and expenses
(A} NET GAINS
Net gain on disposat of property, plant and
eguipment 191 - b b
Net foreign exchange gains included in revenue 1,850 1037 - -
2,041 1,037 - -
(B} NET EXPENSES AND LOSSES
Depreciation
Buildings 569 446 - -
Leasehold improvements 40 18 - -
Plant and equipment 12,482 4,357 - -
Aircraft - 500 - -
TOTAL DEPRECIATION 13,691 5,321 - -
Amortisation
Plant and equipment under finance leases 5611 1,352 - -
Goodwill 2,827 2,447 - -
Licences 436 143 - -
TOTAL AMORTISATION 8.868 3,042 - -
TOTAL DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION 21,958 9,263 - -

Gther charges against assets
Bad and doubtful debts — trade deblors 524 251 - -
Borrowing costs:

Interest - -
- related parties 2,286 1,487 - -
- other parties 5,826 1,792 1,067 -
Finance charges — capitalised leases 1,691 523 - -
Amortisation of deferred borrowing cosis 118 - 34 -
TOTAL BORROWING COSTS 9,915 3,802 1,101 -
Gther expenses and losses
Operating lease rentals — minimum lease 5,738 3,329 - -
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment - g0 - -
{C} SIGNIFICANT (REVENUES) AND EXPENSES
Foreign currency exchange {gain) on aircraft {1.850) {1.037) - -
Write down in value of aircraft 1,442 4,560 - -
Initial public offer costs 4,44% - 4,449 -
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CONSOLIBATED PARENT ENTITY

2005 2004 2008 2304
NOTES FO00 $000 §000 F000

4 Income Tax

The prima facte tax on operating profit is

reconciled to income fax provided in the

financial statements as follows:
Profit from ordinary activities before income
{ax expense 36,927 14,328 13,813 -
Income tax calculated at 30% 11,078 4,298 4,174 -
Tax effect of permanent differences:
Rebateable dividends - - (5,550} -
Share of associates’ net profits {392) (47} - -
Amortisation of goodwill and licence 887 262 - -
Other 230 232 - -
tncome tax adjusted for permanent
differences 11,803 4,735 {1,376} -
Tax liabilities assumed by ultimate Australian
parent entity - - 8,708 3,435
income tax expense/{benefil) on transfer of
deferred tax balances on application of tax
consolidation - - {252} 458
Under provision in previous financial period 175 - - -
Differential tax rate on overseas income 100 39 - -
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12,078 4,774 7.080 3,804
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Current tax payable 7,618 845 5,683 13
Provision for deferred income tax 2,856 5,071 1,012 2,438
Future income tax benefit — timing differences 8,065 7.344 4,478 4141
Future income tax benefit — tax losses 3,739 8,114 3,576 6,750

Future fncome tax benefit not faken fo accouni

There is a potential future income tax benefit in a controlled entity arising from tax losses that have not been
recognised as an asset because at the time of purchasing the confrofled entity the recovery of those tax losses
was not virtually certain.

Tax losses carried forward 582 582 - -

The potential future income tax benefit will only be obtained if:

{i) the relevant company derives future assessable income of a nature and an amount sufficient to enable the
benefit to be realised;

{ity the relevant company confinues fo comply with the conditions for deductibility imposed by the law,; and

(it}  no changes in tax legislation adversely affect the relevant company in realising the benefit.



Notes to the Financial Statements

Forihe Financial Year Ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY
2008 2004 2004 203014
NOTES $000 $000 §000 §000
5 Current Assets - Cash Assets
Cash at bank and on hand 22,866 12,065 6,409 -
Deposits at call 14,888 5,748 6,200 -
37,754 17,813 12,609 -
The above figures are reconciled to cash at
the end of the financial year as shown in the
statement of cash flows as follows:
Balances as above 37,754 17,813 12,608 -
Less: Bank overdrafts - {148) - -
BALANCE PER STATEMENT OF
CASH ELOWS 37,754 17,665 12,608 -

Deposits at call are bearing interest rates between 4.0% and 5.4% (2004: 4.0 and 5.0%).

6 Current Assets — Receivables

Trade debtors 57,353 40,715 - -

Less: Provision for doubtful debts {608} {345} - -
56,745 40,370 - -

Other receivables 3,163 913 - -

Amounts owing - related parties and 36h

associates &c 2,504 7,529 127,662 -
62,502 43,812 127,662 -

7 Current Assets — Inventories

Raw materials and stores — at cost 412 358 - -
Work in progress - at cost 633 3356 - -
Finished goods — at cost 80,825 75,969 - -
Less provision for obsolescence {1.661) {1,528} - -

80,309 75,135 - -

8 Current Assets — Other Asseis

Deferred exchange losses and costs 1,336 - - -
Prepayments 1,300 1,326 - -
Other current assets 3,234 1,708 508 -

5,870 3,631 508 -

9 Non-Current Assets — Investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method

investmenis in associates 7,387 6,082 - -
investmentis in joint venture entities - 40% - -
7,387 6,491 - -

The investment in joint veniure was reclassified o controlled entities during the year.
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CONSCLIDATED

PARENT ENTITY

2006 2004 2004 203014
NOTES a0 $000 §000 §000
18 Non-Current Assets - Other Financial Assets
Shares in controlled entities at cost - - 74,073 74,073
Other investments at cost g9 15 - -
89 15 74,073 74,073
11 Property, Plant and Equipment
LAND
At fair value (2004: At cost) 22,320 8,018 - -
BUILDINGS
At fair value (2004: At cost) 28,892 22,611 - -
Less: Accumulated amortisation (822} {3,674} - -
28,070 19,037 - -
LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS
At cost 895 752 - -
Less: Accumulated amortisation (584} (554} - -
3 198 - -
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
At cost 133,218 108,971 - -
Less: Accumulated amortisation {59,383) {(53,003) - -
73,836 55,878 - -
PLANT AND EQUIPIMENT UNDER FINANCE
At cost 41,872 34,382 - -
Less: Accumulated amortisation {11,692) {9,301} - -
30,180 25,081 - -
AIRCRAFT
At fair value - 13,060 - -
CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
At cost 7,033 7,188 - -
TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 161,750 129,358 - -

VALUATIONS

The basis of valuation of land, buildings and aircraft is fair value being the amounts for which the assets could

be exchanged between willing parties in an arm’s length transaction, based on current prices in an active
market for simitar properties in the same location and condition. The revaluations of land and buildings,

effective 28 February 2005 were based on independent assessments by a member of the Australian Property
institute. The revaluation of the aircraft was made by the directors based on the expected recoverable amount

on sale.
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Forihe Financial Year Ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

11 Property, Plant and Equipment {continued)
RECONCHIATIONS

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end
of the current financial period are set out below.

CONSOUDATED PARENT ENTHTY
2008 2008

NOTES $000 $000
LAND
Carrying amount at beginning of year 9,016 -
Additions through acquisitions 948 -
Additions 6,638 -
Disposals {1,404) -
Revaluation 7,122 -
Carrying amount at end of year 22,320 -
BUILDINGS
Carrying amount at beginning of year 19,037 -
Additions through acquisitions 200 -
Additions 8,640 -
Disposals {1.038) -
Revaluation 1,800 -
Depreciation {H69) -
Carrying amount at end of year 28,070 -
LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS
Carrying amount at beginning of year 168
Additions 153 -
Depreciation {40) -
Carrying amount at end of year 311 -
PLANT AND EQUIPIMENT
Carrying amount at beginning of year 55,878 -
Additions through acquisitions 20,383 -
Additions 10,797 -
Disposals {1,050} -
Revaluation on acquisition 300 -
Depreciation {12,482) -
Carrying amount at end of year 73,836 -
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT UNDER
EINANCE LEASE
Carrying amount at beginning of year 25,061 -
Additions through acouisitions 559 -
Additions 11,147 -
Disposals {976) -
Depreciation {5611} -
Carrying amount at end of year 30,180 -
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11 Property, Plant and Equipment {continued)

CONSCLIDATED PARENT ENTITY
2005 2004
NOTES $000 §000
AIRCRAFT
Carrying amount at beginning of year 13,000 -
Write-down in value (1,442} -
Disposals (11.558) -
Carrying amount at end of year - -
CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY
2008 20014 2005 2004
NOTES §000 §000 $000 $000
12 Non-Current Assets - Infangibles
Goodwill 71,781 37,507 - -
Less: Accumulated amortisation {10,343 {7,468) - -
61,438 30,038 - -
Trademarks and licences 6,162 5,162 - -
Less: Accumulated amortisation {4,302} {3,872) - -
1,860 4,280 - -
63,208 31,329 - -
13 Non-Current Assets — Deferred Tax Assetls
Future income tax benefit
- attributable o tax losses 3,738 8,114 3,578 8,750
- attributable to timing differences 8,065 7,344 4,478 4141
11,804 15,458 8,054 10,881
14 Cuarrent Liabiities - Payables
Trade creditors 38,276 22,387 - -
Other creditors and accruails 34 137 17,494 383 -
Payables to wholly-owned subsidiaries - - - 2,917
Payables to related parties and associates 36¢c 1,850 11,937 - -
Deferred setttements 5,844 - - -
80,207 51,818 383 2,917
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Forihe Financial Year Ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY
2008 2004 2008 2304
NOTES $000 $000 §000 §000
15 Current Liabilities - Interest Bearing Liabilities
UNSECURED:
Trade and vendor finance 28,060 - - -
SECURED:
Bank overdraft - 148 - -
Trade and vendor finance - 31,026 - -
Lease liability 32k 6,568 5,442 - -
Hire purchase liabilities 32¢ 308 317 - -
6,877 35,933 - -
34,937 36,933 - -
Detalts of the security relating 1o each of the secured liahilities are set out in Note 30
18 Current Liabilities - Tax Liabilities
income tax payable 7.616 845 5,683 13

17 Current Liabiities - Provisions

Employee entillements 8,354 6,003 - -
Provision for warranty 2,751 1,117 - -
Proviston for dividends payable 12,047 - 12,600 -
Provision — other 1421 478 - -

24573 7,596 12,000 -

18 Current Liabilities — Other

Deferred Income 5,611 1,874 - -
Net value of foreign exchange contracts 1,743 - - -
7,354 1,874 - -

18 Non-Current Liabilities — Payables

Deferred seltlements 8,711 - - -
Amounts payable to refated parties 36¢c 704 18,554 - -
7415 18,554 - -
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CONSOLIDATED

PARENT ENTITY

2005 2004 2008 2304
NOTES FO00 $000 §000 §000
20 Non-Current Liabilities —  Interest Bearing Liabilities
UNSECURED:
Bank loans 106,360 - 106,800 -
Loans from related parties 2,260 41,290 - -
108,060 41,290 106,800 -
SECURED:
Bank loans - 47 525 - -
Lease liabiliies 32b 23,324 18,584 - -
Hire purchase Hability 32¢ 304 194 - -
23,628 68,303 - -
132,688 107,593 108,800 -
21 Non-Current Liabilities — Deferred Tax Liabilities
Deferred ncome tax 2,856 5,071 1,012 2,438
22 Non-Current Liabilities — Provisions
Employee entillements 3,136 1,983 - -
Provision for dividend 6,500 287 6,500 -
Provision — other 847 - - -
10,283 2,250 6,500 -
23 Contributed Eguity
(A} SHARE CAPITAL
Ordinary shares fully paid 96,673 74,073 896,673 74,073
2005 2004
NUMBER NUMBER
NOTES OF SHARES §000 OF SHARES F000
(B} MOVEMENTS IN ORDINARY SHARES
Balance at the beginning of the year 93,361,318 74,073 70,000,000 53,220
issued during the financial year:
- acquisition of controlled entities 8,416,687 22,800 23,361,318 20,853
- shiare split at listing 97,222,015 - - -
BALANCE AT THE END OF THE YEAR 200,000,000 98,673 83,361,318 74,073




Notes to the Financial Statements

Forihe Financial Year Ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

23 Contributed Equity {continued)

{C} TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
Ordinary Shares

Ordinary shares participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the parent entity in proportion to the
number of shares held. Ordinary shares entitie their holder fo one vole, either in person or by proxy, at a meeting
of the company.

(D} SHARE OPTIONS
Execulive Share Option Plan

The Company operates an execulive share Option Plan {'the Option Plan") approved by shareholders of the
Company in March 2005. Under the Option Plan the Board of Directors may issue options fo non-executive
directors and executives of the Company. The Board determines the price, number, exercise price, expiry date
and relevant performance hurdles of options to be issued. There are no voling or dividend rights attached to the
options.

Upon exercise of the options and payment of the exercise price, the executives are allotted one fully paid ordinary
share in the Company for each option held.

On termination of employment of a participant generally the option lapses. In certain circumstances, the Board
may elect to allow the terminating participant to retain their options.

Brenzil Pty Lid Option Deed

The Company entered info an option deed with Brenzil Ply Ltd, an entity associated with the Peabody family
interests. These options are intended to enable the Peabody family to retain effective control as the
Non-executive director and executive oplions are exercised. There are no voting or dividend rights attached fo
the options.

Details of options over unissued ordinary shares as at the beginning and end of the financial year and movements
during the year are set out below. No options were exercisable during the year and accordingly there were no
amounts recognised in the financial statements.

DATE
OPTIONS  EXERCISE DATE ON EXERCISE OPTIONS  NUMBER OF OPTIONS AT END OF
GRANTED GR AFTER EXPIRY DATE PRICE GRANTED  YEAR
AN ISSUE YESTED
EXECUTIVE SHARE OPTIONS
3May 2005 31 August 2006 31 July 2008 $2.40 2,316,667 2,316,867 -
3 May 2005 31 August 2007 31 July 2008 $2.40 2,316,667 2,316,867 -
3 May 2005 31 August 2008 31 July 2009 $2.40 2,316,666 2,316,866 -

6,950,000 8,950,000 -

BRENZIL PTY LTD SHARE OPTIONS

3 May 2005 31 August 2008 31 July 2008 $2.76 2,316,667 2,316,667 -
3 May 2005 31 August 2007 31 July 2008 $3.17 2,316,667 2,316,667 -
3 May 2005 31 August 2008 31 July 2009 $3.65 2,316,666 2,316,668 -

5,950,000 6,950,000 -

13,900,000 13,900,000
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

2005 2004 2004 203014
NOTES 000 $000 §000 §000

24 Reserves
Foreign currency transiation reserve {399} - - -
Asset revaluation reserve 8,322 - - -
8,923 - - -

{1} FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE

a) Nature and purpose of reserve

The foreign currency fransiation reserve is used to record differences arising from the transiation of the financial
statements of self-sustaining foreign operations.

MOVEMENTS:

Foreign currency franstation reserve:
Opening balance - - - -

Loss on translation of foreign controlied entities (399) - - -
CLOSING BALANCE {399) - - -

{(MASSET REVALUATION RESERVE

a) Nature and purpose of reserve
The asset revaluation reserve is used to record revaluations of non-current assets.

MOVEMENTS:
Asset revaluation reserve:
Opening balance - - - -
Revaluation — 28 February 2005 9,322 - - -
CLOSING BALANCE 9,322 - - -

25 Retained profits

Opening balance 10,231 1,558 5,523 9,417
Net profit attributable to members of

Transpacific Industries Group Lid 22,881 8,675 6,833 {3,894)
Dividends provided for or paid (18,547) {18,500) -
CLOSING BALANCE 14,585 10,231 (8,144} 5,523

26 Ouiside Equity Interesis in Controlled Entities

QUTSIDE EQUITY INTERESTS IN
CONTROLLED ENTITIES COMPRISE:

interest in:

Contributed equity 2,344 8,683 - -
Retained profits 338 1,844 - -
Reserves - 77 - -

2,683 10,604 - -




Notes to the Financial Statements

Forihe Financial Year Ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

CONSOLIBATED FPARENT ENTITY
2005 2604 2005 2004
NOTES Fand 5000 FO00 000

27 Dividends

(A} ORDINARY SHARES
Special fully franked dividend declared on
8 March 2005 to minority shareholders
{$47.000 per share) 47 - - -
Special fully franked dividend declared on
8 March 2005 to pre-IPO shareholders
{19.82c per share) 18,500 - 18,500 -

TOTAL DIVIDENDS DECLARED FOR PAYMENT 18,547 - 18,500 -

Apart from the above dividend payable to pre-IPO shareholders in accordance with the prospectus there is no
dividend payabile for the year ended 30 June 2005.

(B} FRANKING CREDIT BALANCE

Franking crediis available for subsequent
financial years based on a fax rate of 30% 4,798 7,929 2,901 4,834

The above amounts represent the balance of the franking account at the end of the financial vear, adjusted for
franking credits that will arise from the payment of income tax payable as at the end of the financial year.

56&59



28 investments in Controlled Entities

INTEREST HELD BY

CONSOLIDATED COST OF PARENT
ENTITY ENTHY'S INVESTMENT

FORMATION/PLACE 2005 2004 2005 2004

ENTFTY OF INCORPORATION % % §006 $000

Transpacific Co Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 20,853 20,853
Transpacific Resources Lid Australia 160 160

Western Star Trucks Australia Pty Lid Australia 100 100 53,220 53,220
Man Automotive Imports Pty Lid Australia 100 100
Man imports Pty Lid Australia 100 100
MAN Automotive Imports (NZ) Lid Mew Zealand 100 100
Transpacific Industries Pty Ltd Australia 160 160
Australian Resource Recovery Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
Associated Oils Pty 1.td Australia 100 100
Environmental Recovery Services Pty Lid Australia 100 100
ERS Australia Pty Lid Australia 100 100
ERS Administrations Pty Lid Australia 160 100
ERS Enviro Hire Pty Lid Australia 100 100
Kieenparts Pty Lid ** Australia 100 100
ERS New Zealand Ltd Mew Zealand 400 100
ERS Singapore Pte Lid Singapore 160 160
ERS Services (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd Malaysia 100 100
ERS Taiwan Lid Taiwan 160 100
Austraian Terminal Services Pty Ltd Australia  63.08 63.08
ATS Developments Pty Lid Austratia 70 70
NGQ Resource Recovery Pty Ltd * Australia 095 50
Nationwide Oil Pty Ltd Australia 100 75
Oil & Fuel Salvaging (Qid) Pty Ltd ™ Australia 160 -
Transpaciic Refiners Pty Lid = 0 Australia 50 -
Transpacific Industrial Solutions Pty Ltd * Australia 99,99 66.52
QORS Pty Lid Australia 51 51
Olmway Pty Lid ® Australia 50 50
Transpacific Energy Pty Ltd Australia 100 -
Transpacific Manufacturing Systems P/IL ™ Australia 51 -

74,073 74,073

{iY Wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company have management control and the casting vote of Transpacific
Refiners Pty Lid and Olmway Pty Lid and thus the Company has the capacily fo dominate decision making in
refation to the financial and operating policies so as to enable those entifies to operate as part of the consolidated
entity in pursuing its objectives.

* Subsequent to year end, the group purchased the cne share in NQ Resource Recovery Pty Lid {which partially
owns Transpacific Industrial Solutions Pty Lid) from Terry Peabody, giving it 100% ownership.

** Acguired during the financial year. Refer to Note 31{c} for details.
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Forihe Financial Year Ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

29 investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method
(A} DETAILS OF INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES ARE AS FOLLOWS:

OWNERSHIP INTEREST

CARRYING VALUE

PRINCIPAL 2008 2004 2005 204
ENTITY ACTIITY % % §000 $000
Westermn Star Truck Centre Trust Truck and bus
dealership 50 50 - -
Total Waste Management Py Lid Waste
Western Resource Recovery Piy Lid  Wasle
management 50 50 1 ,893 1 ‘246
Mann Waste Management Pty Lid Waste
ERS Co Pty Lid Industriat
services 49 49 - 408
7,387 6,491

(B} CARRYING AMOUNT OF INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

CONSOLIDATED

2005

2004

§000 §000
Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial period 6,491 -
Addition of new investments - 6,336
6,491 6,336
Share of net profits attributable to associates 1,305 185
Transfer of joint venture entity to controlled entity {(408) -
CARRYING AMOUNT AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL PERICD 7.387 5,491
{C} RESULTS ATTRIBUTABLE TO ASSOCIATES
Profit from ordinary activities before related income tax 1,601 181
Income fax expense {298) 1]
Profits from ordinary activities after income tax 1,305 185
Accumutated losses attributable to associates at the beginning of the year (593} (748)
Retained profits/{Accumulated losses) atiributable to associates at the end of the
year 712 (593)
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COMSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

2005 2004 2005 2004
B0 Foo0 Fong 000

38 Financing Arrangements

The consolidated entity had unrestricted access at 30 June 2005 fo an unsecured $210 million syndicated multi-
option facility as set out below. The Facility Agreement runs for three years from 3 May 2005 and includes
covenants usual to an unsecured facility. The Company and consolidated entity can also borrow outside the
facility. Lease liahilities are effectively secured as the rights fo the leasad assets recognised in the financial
statements revert fo the lessor in the event of defaull.

in the prior year the company had facilities with different bankers and the faciliies were secured. In addition the
Company was privately owned and the pre-IPO shareholders also made loans to the company. These
sharehotder loans were not considered a debt facility and are therefore excluded from the comparatives below.
They were repaid when the new facility commenced.

DEBT FACILITIES

Total facilities available 219,958 102,438 - -
Facilities utilised at balance date {166,257) {94 237) - -
Facilities not utilised at balance date 53,698 8,201 - -

Facilities used at balance date include $13.3 million in guarantees and lefters of credit which are off the statement
of financial position. Refer Note 33.



Notes to the Financial Statements

Forihe Financial Year Ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY
2008 2004 2008 2304
5000 $000 F000 F000
31 Notes to the Statements of Cash Flows
{a} Reconciliation of operating profit/(loss} after
income tax to net cash flow from operating
activities:
Net profit/{loss) after income fax expense 24 8489 9,554 6,833 {3,894)
NON-CASH ITEMS
Depreciation of non-current assels 13,091 5,321 - -
Amorfisation of non-current assets 8,868 3,842 - -
Bad and doubtful debt expense 524 251 - -
Foreign exchange gain on loan {1,850} {621) - -
Dividends received from associates - - {18,500) -
Share of associates’ net profits {1,305} {155) - -
Net {gain)/toss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment {191} 90 - -
Write down in value of aircraft 1,442 4,500 - -
CASH FLOW ADJUSTED FOR
NON-CASH ITEMS 45428 22.882 (11,667} (3,894}
CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
increase/{decrease) in receivables {18,630) {3,788) {863) -
{IncreaseYdecrease in other assets {2,367) {294} {H09) -
{Increasedecrease in inveniories {4,488) {4,308) - -
Increase/{decrease) in payables 27,311 {10,084) 4,832 -
Increasef{decrease) in income tax payable 6,771 1,264 5,670 -
{IncreaseYdecrease in deferred taxes 1.881 1.632 1,410 3,894
{Decrease)fincrease in other liabilities 3,864 {3,722} - -
increasef{decrease) in other provisions 4,158 1,172 - -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY/{USED IN}
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 64,628 4,779 (1.227) -

{b} Non-cash financing and investing activities

During the 2005 year the consolidated entity acquired plant and equipment with an aggregate fair value of
$11,146,667 (2004: $3,715,135} by means of finance lease. These acquisitions are not reflected in the
statement of cash flows.

During the year ended 30 June 2005 9,416,867 ordinary shares were issued for a value of $22,600,000 as
part settlement for the purchase of minority interests in controlled entifies and repayment of loans. During
the year ended 30 June 2004 23,361,318 ordinary shares were issued for a value of $20,852,340 as part of
a corporate resiructure arrangement. These share issues are not reflected in the statement of cash flows as
they were not cash flows.
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COMSOLIDATED

PARENT ENTITY

2008 2004 2008 2304
F000 $000 F000 §000
31 Notes to the Statements of Cash Flows (continued)
{c) Acguisition of controlled entities and business operations
Controlied entities and businesses acquired during Inferest  Consideration
the year Date acquired acquired $:000
Kieenparts Pty Ltd 1 July 2004 106% 417
Transpacific Manufacturing Systems Pty Ltd 8 July 2004 51% 1,250
Oif and Fuel Salvaging Pty Ltd 1 March 2005 100% 1,521
Transpacific Refiners Pty Lid 28 June 2005 50% 250
Minority interests acquired 28 February 2005 25-49% 24,280
Businesses acquired during the year 38,187
65,915
Details of the acquisitions are as follows:
CONSOLIDATED
2008 2004
$000 $000
Total consideration 65,915 21,442
Non-cash consideration (19,515} (20,852)
Consideration payable in fulure years {15,805) -
Cash acquired {389) {5,208)
Minority equity investment in Transpacific
Manufacturing Systems Pty Lid {1,201} -
OUTFLOW/(INFLOW) OF CASH 28,005 {4,618)
Fair value of net assets acquired:
Cash assets 389 5,208
Receivables 1,356 31,725
inventories 588 3,232
Other assets 484 42,056
Deferred tax assels 442 -
Property, plant and equipment 22,100 101,486
intangibles 1,338 -
Payables (485) {33,979)
Provisions and other liabilities {2,624} {3,819}
interest bearing liabilittes {2,561} (114,721)
Net assets at date of acquisition 21,125 31,088
Outside equity interest at acquisition 11,341 {9,684}
Goodwill on acquisitions 33,449 38

CONSIDERATION

65,915

21,442




Notes to the Financial Statements

Forihe Financial Year Ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

CONSOLIDATED FPARENT ENTITY
2005 2004 2005 2004
NOTES Fand FO00 Fong 000

32 Commitments for Expenditure

(A} OPERATING LEASES

The consolidated entity leases property, plant and equipment under operating leases expiring over terms of up fo
six years. lLeases generally provide the consolidated entity with a right of renewal at which time all terms are

renegotiated.

Commitments for minimum lease payments
in relation to non-cancellable operating
leases are payable as follows:

Within one year 3,350 2,821 - -
Later than one year and not later than five 6.897 6,237 - -
Later than five years 508 1,153 - -
COMMITMENTS NOT RECOGNISED IN

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 10,755 10,211 - -

(B} FINANCE LEASES

The consolidated entity leases plant and equipment under finance leases expiring over terms of up fo six years.
At the end of the lease term the consolidated entity generally has the option to purchase the equipment at a

percentage of market value.

Commitmenits in relation to finance
leases are payable as follows:

Within one year 8,823 7.253 - -
Later than one vear and not later than 26,145 20,846 - -
Later than five years 521 - - -
Minimum lease payments 35,289 28,088 - -
Less:

Future finance charges {5,387} {4,073) - -
TOTAL LEASE LIABILITIES 29,892 24,028 - -
Representing lease liabilities:

Current 15 6,068 5,442 - -
Non-current 20 23,324 18,584 - -
TOTAL LEASE LIABILITIES 29,802 24,026 - -

64865



CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

2005
NOTES Fand
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FO00 Fong 000

32 Commitments for Expenditure {continued)

(C} HIRE PURCHASES

The consolidated entity has hire purchase agreements in place for various items of plant and equipment expiring

over terms of up to three years.

Commitments in relation o hire purchases
are payable as follows:

Within one year 340 366 - -

Later than one year and not later than five 337 216 - -

Minimum hire purchase payments 677 582 - -

Less:

Future finance charges {64) {71) - -

TOTAL BIRE PURCHASE LIABILITIES 613 511 - -

Representing hire purchase liabiliies:

Current 15 308 317 - -

Non-current 20 304 194 - -

TOTAL HIRE PURCHASE LIABILITIES 613 511 - -
(D} CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

Othier commitments in relation to capital

expenditure and purchase commitments

entered into:

Within one year 822 1,245 - -

COMMITMENTS NOT RECOGNISED IN

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 822 1,245 - -

33 Contingent Liabilities
(A} GUARANTEES

The consolidated entity is, in the normal course of business, required fo provide guarantees and letters of credit
on behalf of controlled entities and associates in respect of their contractual performance related obligations.
These guarantees and indemnities only give rise to a liability where the entity concerned falls fo perform its

confractual obligations.
Letters of credit issued o suppliers 798

Bank guarantees outstanding at balance
date in respect of financing facilities 6,164

Bank guarantees outstanding at batance
date in respect of contractual performance 6,347

13,310
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY
2005 2004 2005 2004
NOTES Fand FO00 Fong 000

33 Contingent Liabilities {continued)
(B} LITIGATION AND OTHER CLAIMS

A clalm has been brought against a controlled enfity for use of the Interline Technology. The action is being
defended and a counter-claim should it proceed has been made. In the Directors’ opinion, the Company will be
successid in defending this case.

From fime to time claims may be brought against the consolidated enfity in the normal course of business. Gther
than the matier referred o above the Directors are of the opinion that there are no other matters requiring
disclosure.

CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY
2005 2004 2008 2004
NOTES $004 $000 $000 $000
34 Employee Benefits and Superannuation Commitments
(A} EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
The aggregate employee benefis
Hability, including on-costs is comprised of:
Provisions (current) 8,354 5,003 - -
Provisions {non-current} 3,136 1,983 - -
11,490 7,986 - -
(B} EMPLOYEE NUMBERS
NUMBER OF FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT
EMPLOYEES AS AY 30 JUNE 2005 1,327 1,136 - -

{C} SUPERANNUATION COMMITMENTS

The company and its controlled entities contribute fo accumulated benefit superannuation plans for employees.
The consolidated entity confributes at least the statutory percentage required in each jurisdiction where it
operates.

35 Remuneration of Auditors

Remuneration for audit or review of the financial
reports of the parent entity or any entity in the
consolidated entity:

Auditor of the parent entity 246 112 - -

Other auditors of confrolled entities 33 24 - -
278 136 - -

Amounts received for other services:

Other services 201 40 - -
486 178 - -
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2005 2004 2005 2004
Fand Foo0 5000 F0on

36 Related Parties

(A} DIRECTORS AND SPECIFIED EXECUTIVES
Disclosures relating to directors and speciiied executives are setf out in Note 41.
(B} WHOLLY-OWNED GROUP TRANSACTIONS

The wholly-owned group consists of Transpacific Industries Group Ltd and its wholly-owned entities fisted at
Note 28.

Transactions between Transpactic Industries Group Lid and other entities in the wholly-owned group during the
years ended 30 June 2005 and 2004 consisted of:

a) loans advanced by Transpacific Industries Group Lid and other wholly-owned entities;

o

foans repaid fo Transpacific Industries Group Ltd and other wholly-owned entities;

[~ ]

)

)

y  the payment of interest on the above loans;

Y the payment of dividends to Transpacific Industries Group Litd and other wholly-owned entities;
)

e) management fees charged fo wholly-owned entities; and
f) sales between wholly-owned entities.

The above transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates, except that
there are no fixed terms for the repayment of principal on loans advanced. The average interest rate charged on
the loans during the year was 6.5% {2004 — 6.5%).

Aggregate amounis included in the determination of operating profit before income tax that resulted from
transactions with entities in the wholly-owned group:

PARENT EMTITY

2008 2004

$onn F000
Interest revenue 241 -
Dividend revenue 18,500 -

Aggregate amounts receivable from entities in the wholly-owned group at balance date:

PARENT ENTITY

2008 2004
$000 $000
Current receivables (loans) 127,662 {2,817}

{C} OTHER RELATED PARTIES

Aggregate amounts included in the determination
of operating profit before income tax that resulied
from fransactions with each class of other related
parties:

Interest revenue
Associates 57 - - -

interest expense
Director-related parties 1,848 1,028 - -
Minority shareholders 331 459 - -
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY
2008 2004 2008 2004
5000 $000 §000 $000
36 Related Parties (continved)
{C} OTHER RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)
Aggregate amounts brought to account in relation
o other fransactions with each class of other
related parties:
Loans advanced {o:
Associates 74 -
Minority shareholders 250 -
L.oan repayments to:
Director-related entities 55,283 -
Minority shareholders 3,861 -
Aggregate amounts receivable from, and
payable o, each class of other related parties at
balance date:
Current receivables:
Associates 2,344 1,800
Director-related entities - 5,629
Minority shareholders 250 -
2,594 7.529
Current payables:
Associafes 1,800 2,270
Director-related entities - 9,687
Minority shareholders 50 -
1,850 11,937
Non-current payables:
Director-related entities - 17,869
Minority shareholders 704 685
704 18,554
Non-current interest Bearing Liahilities:
Director-related entities - 35,000
Minority shareholders 2,260 §,280
2,260 41,290

Transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates, except that there are
no fixed terms for the repayment of loans belween the parties. Interest was charged at 8.5% {2004 — 6.5%).
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36 Related Parties (continued)}

{C) OTHER RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUEL)

As outlined in the Prospectus, the group owned an alrcraft untll its sale on 30 March 2005 fo an entity related fo
Terry Peabody. Between 31 March and 3 May 2005 while Transpacific was still privately owned, the aircraft was
hired by Transpacific for company business — mainly relating fo the PO roadshow. Since 3 May 2005 when
Transpacific became a public Company the aircraft was hired for company business on normal commercial terms
and cenditions. TranspacHic continues to administer the aircraft charters. No charler revenue or cosis, other than
when Transpacific hires the aircraft, are borne by Yranspacific. Transpacific charges the related party $10.000
per annum for administration time. The effect is:

30 March 2005

Sale proceeds of $11,688,000 were recognised giving a profit before tax on sale of aircraft of $130,000.
31 March fo 3 May 2005 {date of listing}

Payment for hire of aircraft of $68,600 in relation to the IPO roadshow has been expensed in IPO costs.
Administration fee charged fo the related party was $904.,

3 May to 30 June 2005

The Company paid $8,800 for the hire of the aircraft which was used {o fly five Transpacific executives in
connection with the acguisition of businesses. This amount was capilalised. Administration fee charged o the
related party was $1,588.

During the year, a group company held the liquor licence for the Craggy Range and Capricorn wine business in
Australia and provided accounting services. The licence and business were transferred out of the group effective
1 July 2005 and a net receivable of approximately $172,678 remained at 30 June 2005 in respect of the business
and its employees. During the year the group made neither profit nor loss on this business.

At 30 June 2008, $25,597 was receivable from a related party in connection with the supply of goods as a pass
through cost. The Company incurs no profit or loss on this transaction.

The Company administered charters and costs in relation to a boat owned by a related party. At 30 June 2005,
the related party owed $40,818 to the Company. The Company incurs no profit or loss on this transaction.

The Company frades on normal commercial terms and conditions on an arm's-ength basis with companies
connected with two Non-executive directors — JJ Richards and Sons Pty Lid and Campbell Brothers Limited.
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37 Segment Information
FPRIMARY REPORTING ~ BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The consolidated entity comprises the following main business segments:

Waste management and Includes collection, fransportation, treatment and sale or disposal of
recycling waste oil, cooking oil and other liguid waste
industrial solutions Includes industrial cleaning, high pressure water blasting and

manufacture and lease out of parts washers
Commercial vehicles Importation and distribution of commercial vehicles and paris

inter-segment pricing is determined on an arms-length basis.

MANAG?;‘:;;? INGUSTRIAL COMMERCIAL

& RECYCLING SOLUTIONS VEHICLES ELIMINATIONS  CONSOLIDATED
2008 §000 $000 $060 $000 §000
Sales to external customers 105,805 129,189 220,818 455 K02
Inter-segment sales 2,622 868 - {3.480)
TOTAL SALES REVENUE 108,427 136,037 220,618 (3,490) 455,592
Other revenus 11,1568 580 15,588 - 27,426
TOTAL SEGMENT REVENUE 119,585 130,717 236,206 (3,490) 483,018
Segment result before
associates 11,772 8,681 19,758 40,211
Share of net profit of associates 1,305 - - 1,305
SEGMENT RESULY 13,077 8,881 19,758 41,516
Unallocated revenue less
unallocated expenses {4,589)
PROFIT FROM ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES BEFORE INCOME
TAX EXPENSE 36,927
income fax expense {12,078)
NET PRGFIT 24,849
Depreciation and amortisation
expense 9,556 11,157 1,246 - 21,859
Other non-cash expenses 242 a1 1,442 - 1,775
Segment asseis 198,849 122,168 148,538 {67,341) 402,214
Investmenis in assoclates
included in segment assetls 7,387 - - 7,387
Unallocated assets 21172
TOTAL ASSETS 430,773
Segment liabilities 178,447 93,611 77,634 (67,341) 282,351
Unallocated liabilittes 25,578
TOTAL LIABILITIES 307,929
Acqudsition of non-current assets 66,905 15,414 60 - 83,008
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37 Segment Information (continued)

PRIMARY REPORTING — BUSINESS SEGMENTS [CONTINUED)

WASTE

MANAGEMENT INDUSTRIAL COMMERCIAL

& RECYCLING SOLUTIONS VEHCLES ELIMINATIONS  CONSOLIDATED
2004 §000 $000 Fan0 $000 §000
Sales to external customers 28,238 32,791 190,105 - 251,134
inter-segment sales 831 389 {1,320} -
TOTAL SALES REVENUE 29,169 33,180 190,105 {1,320) 251,134
Other revanue 2,444 129 2,163 - 4,736
TOTAL SEGMENT REVENUE 31,613 33,300 192,268 {1,320} 255,870
Segment result before
associates 3,687 1,668 8,068 14,173
Share of net profit of associates 155 - - - 155
SEGMENT RESULY 3,752 1,608 8,968 - 14,328
Unallocated revenue less
unallocated expenses -
PROFIT FROM ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES BEFORE INCOME
TAX EXPENSE 14,328
Income tax expense {4.774)
NET PROFIT 9,554
Depreciation and amortisation
expense 3,676 3,983 1,604 9,263
Other non-cash expenses 4,500 4,560
Segment assels 110,674 84,472 141,831 (26,917) 310,080
Investmenis in associates
included in segment assets 5,491 - - - 6,481
Unallocated assets 10,891
TOTAL ASSETS 327,442
Segment liabilities 101,283 55,054 87,7486 (26,917) 227,166
Unallocated liabilities 5,368
TOTAL LIABILITIES 232,534
Acquisition of non-current
assets” 85,229 58,789 454 - 144,472

* The corporate restructure on 28 February 2004 resulted in the waste management & recycling and industriat
services segments being acquired by the Company. As a result the acquisition of non-current assets includes the
non-current assetis of these segmenis acquired as part of the restructure.
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37 Segment Information (continued)

SECONDARY REPORTING — GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

In presenting information on the basis of geographic segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical
tocation of customers. Segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets:

Australia All three business segments have operations.
New Zealand All three business segments have operations.
South East Asia Industrial services operations and commercial vehicles sales.

NEWY SOUTH EAST

AUSTRALIA ZEALAND ASIA TOTAL
2005 §000 $000 $000 §000
Sales to external customers 427.819 26,658 1,815 455 592
Segment net assets 118,874 3,804 366 122,844
Acquisition of non-current assets 69,594 13,415 - 83,008
NEW

AUSTRALIA ZEALAND SOUTH EAST TOTAL
2004 F000 F000 ASIA 5000 §000
Sales to external customers 237,398 12,868 867 251,134
Segment net assets 93,365 1,134 408 94,908
Acquisition of non-current assets 142,522 1,340 610 144 472

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE SEGMENT INFORMATION
(A} CHANGE IN SEGMENT ACCOUNTING POLICY

in the prior year segment reporting was broken into waste management and recycling and commercial vehicles
divisions only as this reflected the management reporting structure of the Company at that ime. This year an
improved management reporting system has been implemented and results are accounted for in three segments.
Comparative information has been restated to reflect this change.

3B Financial lnstruments

(A} DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
Transpacific Indusiries Group Lid and certain of its confrolled entities are parties o derivative financial

instruments in the normial course of business in order 1o hedge exposure to fluctuations in interest and foreign
axchange rates.

Bank loans of the consclidated entity currently bear an average variable interest rate of 6.5%. It is policy fo
protact part of the loans from exposure fo increasing interest rates. Accordingly, the consolidated entity has
entered into interest rate swap contracts under which it is obliged to receive interest at variable rates and fo pay
interest at fixed rates. The contracts are settled on a net basis and the net amount receivable or payable at the
reporting date is included in other debtors or other creditors.

The contracts require settlement of net interest receivable or payable each 30 days.

Swaps currently in place cover approximately 75% (2004 — 21%) of term debt outstanding and expire August

2006 and May 2010. The fixed inferest rales currently range belween 5.74% and 6.79% (2004 — 6.3%) and the
variable rate at balance date was 6.51%.
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38 Financial Instruments {confinued)

(A} DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

At 30 June 2005, the notional principal amounis and periods of expiry of the interest rate swap confracts are
as follows:

2008 2004
$000 5000

1-2years 10,600 -
2 - 3 years - 10,000
4 — 5 years 70,000 -
80,000 10,600

The Commercial Yehicles group sells vehicles and paris purchased from the United States and Germany. In
order to protect against exchange rate movements, the consolidated entity has entered into forward exchange
confracts fo purchase US dollars and Euro.

The contracts are timed fo mature when major shipments are scheduled fo arrive in Australia reflecting when the
Company has to pay for the goods and cover a proportion of anticipated purchases for the ensuing financial year.

At balance date, the details of outstanding contracts are:

BLY US DOLLARS SELL AUSTRALIAN DOLLARS AVERAGE EXCHANGE RATE
2008 2004 2008 2004
F000 F000 o006 SO0

Maturity

g - 6 months 37,899 - 0.752 -

6 — 12 months 24,934 - 0.752 -

BLY EURC SELL AUSTRALIAN DOLLARS AVERAGE EXCHANGE RATE
2008 2004 2008 2004
F000 000 000 F000

Maturity

g - 6 months 43,222 - 4.6043 -

& — 12 months 14,664 - 0.8058 -

As these contracts are hedging anticipated future purchases, any unrealised gains and losses on the confracts,
together with the cost of the conlracts, are deferred and will be recognised in the measurement of the underlying
transaction provided the underlying fransaction is stift expected to occur as originally designated. Included in the
amounts deferred are any gains and losses on hedging contracts terminated prior to maturity where the related
hedged transaction is still expected {o occur as designated.

Amounts receivable and payable on open contracts are included in other assels and liabilitles respectively.

The following gains and losses have been deferred at balance date:

2005 2004
FO00 Faon

Unrealised gains - -
Less: Unrealised losses 1,336 -

NET UNREALISED LOSSES 1,336 -
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38 Financial Instruments {confinued)

(B} CREDIT RISK EXPOSURES
Credit risk represents the foss that would be recognised if counterparties failed to perform as contracted.

The credit risk on financial assets of the consolidated entity which have been recognised on the statement of
financial position, other than investments in shares, is generally the carrying amount, net of any provisions for
doubtful debis.

The consolidated entity minimises concentrations of credit risk by undertaking fransactions with a large number
of customers.

Credit risk on interest rate and foreign exchange contracts which have not been recognised on the statement of
financial position is minimal as counterparties are large Australian and international banks with acceptable credit
ratings determined by a recognised ratings agency.

{C} INTEREST RATE RISK EXPOSURES

The consolidated entity’s exposure to interest rate risk and the effective weighled average interest rate by
maturity periods is set out in the following table.

FECED INTEREST MATURING BN

WEIGHTER
AVERAGE FLOATING OVER 1 MORE NON-
INTEREST INTEREST t YEAR YEAR THAN INTEREST
RATE RATE  ORLESS TO&  BYEARS BEARING TOTAL
{4 $000 F000 YEARS $000 $000 §000

2005
EINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and deposils 5.2 37,718 - - - 38 37,754
Trade and other
receivables - - - - - 58,908 59,808
Amounts receivable
from related parties - - - - - 2,594 2,594
Cther financiat assets - - - - - 98 99
TOTAL FINANCIAL
ASSETS 37,718 62,637 100,355
EINANCIAL
LIABILITIES
Trade and vendor
finance .62 28,060 - - - - 28,080
Bank loans £.61 106,800 - 106,800
Lease liabilites 879 6,877 23,628 30,505
Payable to related
parties 6.5 2,260 2,654 4,914
Deferred settlements - 12,555 12,555
Net value of foreign
exchange contracts - 1,743 1,743
Trade and other
aceruals - 72413 72413
TOTAL FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES 134,860 6,877 25,888 89,365 256,990
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38 Financial Instruments {continued)

{C} INTEREST RATE RISK EXPOSURES (CONTINUED)

FIXED INTEREST MATURING
WEIGHTED

AVERAGE FLOATING OY(E;FE BORE NON-
INTEREST INTEREST 1 YEAR A THAN INTEREST
RATE RATE OR LESS vEARS 5 YEARS BEARING TOTAL
(%} F000 o006 00 F000 000 000

2004
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and deposils 4.63 17,788 - - - 25 17,813
Trade and other
debtors - - - - - 41,283 41,283
Amounts receivable
fromi related parties - - - - - 7.25% 7,259
Other financial assets - - - - - 15 15
TOTAL FINANCIAL
ASSETS 17,788 - - - 48,582 66,370
FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES
Bank overdrafls 5.78 148 - - - - 148
Trade and vendor
fnance 592 31,026 - - - - 31,026
Bank lcans 5.93 47 525 - - - - 47 525
Lease liabiliies 648 - 5,758 18,779 - - 24 537
Payable o related
parties - - - 41,290 - 30,481 71,781
Trade and other
accruals - - - - - 35,881 38,881
TOTAL FINANCIAL
LIABILITHES 78,699 5758 60,069 - 70,372 214,898

(D) NET FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities recognised in the statement of financial position
approximate their fair values.

The net fair value of financial instruments not recognised on the statement of financial position held as at 30 June
2005 are:

2005 2004
Fong 5000

interest rate swaps 500 -
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38 Earnings Per Share

2005 2004

Cailcutated in accordance with AASB 1027:

Basic eamnings per share (cents per share) 19.5¢

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the

denominator in calculating basic earnings per share 117,572,803

Diltuted earnings per share [cents per share) 19.1¢

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the

denominator in calculating diluted eamings per share 119,781,370

For the year ended 30 June 2005 Earnings Per Share has been calculated on the basis referred to above and
on the capital structure following listing on the ASX as this is considered more meaningful and reflective of the
ongoing position of the Company.

2005 2004
Calculated based on the ongoing position of the company:
Basic eamnings per share (cents per share) 1t.4c
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the
denominator in calculating basic earnings per share 200,000,660
Dituted eamings per share (cents per share} 10.7¢
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the
denominator in calculating diluted eamings per share 213,800,000

40 Economic Dependency

The consolidated entity’s vehicle and pars importing business depends on it receiving an ongoing supply of fully
assembled vehicles and spare parts from the owners of Western Star, Autocar and MAN. While interruption to
one manufacturers supply would impact the commercial vehicles operation it would generally require both
Waestern Star and MAN supply interruptions to materially harm this business.

41 Director and Execidive Disclosures

(A} DETAILS OF SPECIFIED DIRECTORS AND SPECIFIED EXECUTIVES
{1 Specified directors
Terry Peabody {Chairman}
Howard Wilson (Chief Executive Officer)
Harold Grundel]
Geoff Sparks
John Richards {Deputy Chairman)} (appointed 21 March 2005}
Bruce Brown {appointed 8 March 2005)
Graham Mulligan {appointed 13 November 2004)
Red Ruston (appointed 8 March 2005)
{ii} Specified executives
Stewart Smith — Advisor to Executive Chairman
Paul Glavac — Managing Director, Commercial Vehicles Group
Terry Woods ~ Managing Director, Environmental Recovery Services Py Lid
Nick Badyk — Managing Director, Transpacific Industrial Solutions Pty Ltd
Trevor Coonan — Chief Financlal Officer {commenced employment 4 October 2004)
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The disclosures relating fo remuneration of specified directors and executives is set out in the
remuneration report section of the directors report on pages 27 to 31,

OPTION HOLDINGS
The number of oplions over ordinary shares in the company held during the financial year by each director of the

Company and each of the five specified executives of the consolidated entity, including their personally-related
entiies, are set out below. No oplions are vested and unexercisable at the end of the year.

GRANTED OTHER VESTED AND

BALANCE AT DLRING THE EXERCISED CHANGES BALANCE AT EXERCISABLE

THE START GF YEAR AS DURING THE DURING THE THE END OF AT THE END

NAME THE YEAR  REMUNERATHIN YEAR YEAR THE YEAR  OF THE YEAR

Specified directors:

Terry Peabady . - 6,950,000 6,950,000 -

Howard Wilson - 4,006,060 - - 1,060,000 -
John Richards - 56,000 - - 50,000 -
Bruce Brown - 56,000 - - 50,000 -
Graham Mulligan - 50,000 - - 50,000 -
Rod Ruston - 56,000 - - 50,006 -
Geoff Sparks - 500,000 - - 500,000 -
Harold Grundelt - 506,000 - - 500,000 -
Specified executives:

Stewart Smith - 750,060 - - 750,000 -
Paul Glavac - 500,060 - - 500,000 -
Terry Woods - 500,000 - - 500,000 -
Nick Badyk - 500,000 - - 500,000 -
Trevor Coonan - 500,600 - - 500,000 -
SHARE HOLDINGS

The number of shares in the company held during the financial year by each director of the Company and each of
the five specified executives of the consolidated entity, including their personally-related entities are set out below.

RECEIVED
DURING THE OTHER
BALANCE AT YEAR ON THE CHANGES  BALANCE AT THE
THE START OF  EXERCISE OF  DURING THE END OF THE
NAME THE YEAR OETIONS YEAR YEAR
Specified directors:
Terry Peabody {including relatives) 83,361,318 - 8,638,682 102,000,000
Howard Witson - - - -
Johin Richards - - 8,395,834 8,385,834
Bruce Brown - - 85,000 85,000
Graham Mulligan - - 30,000 30,000
Rod Ruston - - 31,250 31,250
Geolf Sparks - - 83,000 83,000
Harold Grundel - - 125,000 125,000
Specified executives:
Stewart Smith - - - -
Paul Glavac - - 25,000 25,000
Terry Woods - - 84,000 84,000
Nick Badyk - - 44,0600 44,600

Trevor Coonan - - 706,000 700,000
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41 Director and Executive Disclosures {continued)
LOANS TO DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

During the year ended 30 June 2008, $23,722 was advanced to a director of the Company. Interest was charged
at 8.5%.

42 Subsequent Events

Since 30 June 2005 the Company has acquired a number of businesses, which individually and in aggregate are
not material.

No other matter or circumsiance has arisen since 30 June 2008 that has significantly affected, or may significantly
affect the operations of the consolidated entity, the results of those operations in future financial years, or the
state of affairs of the consclidated entity in subsequent financial years.

43 impact of adopting Australian equivalents to IFRS

The Australian Accounting Standards Board is adopting international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) for
application to reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005, The AASE has issued Australian
equivalents to IFRS, and the Urgents Issues Group has issued interpretations corresponding to IASE
interpretations originated by the international Financial Reporting Interpretations Commiitee or the former
Standing Interpretations Commitiee. These Australian equivalents fo IFRS are referred io hereafler as AIFRS.
The adoption of AIFRS will be reflected in the consolidated entily’s financial statements for the half-year ending
31 December 2005 and the vear ending 30 June 2008,

Entities complying with AIFRS for the first time will be required fo restate their comparative financial statements 1o
amounis reflecting the application of AIFRS to that comparative period. Most adjustments required on fransition
to AIFRS will be made, retrospectively, against opening retained earnings at 1 July 2004,

The consolidated entity has established a project team fo manage the transition to AIFRS, including fraining of
staff and system and internal control changes necessary to gather alt the required financial information. The
project team is chaired by the Chief Financial Officer and reports regularly fo the audit and risk management and
compliance committes.

The project team has analysed all of the AIFRS and has identifled the accounting policy changes that wilt be
required. In some cases choices of accounting policies are available, including elective exemptions under
Accounting Standard AASE 1 First-ime Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting
Standards. These cholces have been analysed to determine the most appropriate accounting policy for the
consolidated entity.

The known or reliably esimable impacts on the statement of financial performance and statement of financial
position for the year ended 30 June 2005 had it been prepared using AIFRS are set out below. No material
impacis are expected in relation to the siatement of cash flows.

(A} INCOME TAX

Under AASB112 Income Taxes, deferred fax balances are {o be determined using the balance sheet method
which calculates temporary differences based on the carrving amounts of an entity’s assels and liabiliies in the
statement of financial position and their associated fax bases. In addition, current and deferred taxes aftributable
to amiounts recognised directly in equity are also recognised directly in equity.

This will result in a2 change to the current accounting policy, under which deferred tax balances are determined
using the income statement method whereby items are only tax-effected if they are included in the determination
of pre-tax accounting profit or loss and/or taxable income or loss. Also current and deferred taxes cannct be
recognised directly in equity.
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43 impact of adopting Australian equivalents to IFRS {confinued)

(A} INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

if the policy required by AASB 112 had been applied during the year ended 30 June 2005 deferred tax liabilities
relating to revalued assets would have been $2,797,000 higher and the asset revaluation reserve would have
been lower by the same amount.

An anomaly may arise when a company adopts the tax consolidation regime and in particular in respect of the fax
value of assets. The ATO is aware of this anomaly and the legislation is under review. Hf the legislation is
changed there will be no AIFRS impact on the statement of financial position. If the ancomaly remains then
deferred tax assels and retained earnings may be reduced by approximately $700,060.

(B} INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GOODWILL

Under AASE 3 Business Combinations, amortisation of goodwill will be prohibited, and will be replaced by annual
impairment testing focusing on the cash flows of the related cash generating unit.

This will resuit in a change to the current accounting policy, under which goodwill is amortised on a straight line
basis over the period during which the benefits are expected to arise and not exceeding 20 years.

if the policy required by AASB 3 had been applied during the vear ended 30 June 2005, consolidated goodwill at
30 June 2005 would have been $2,827,000 higher and consolidated amortisation expense for the year ended
30 June 2005 would have been $2,827,000 lower.

C} EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION BENEFITS

Under AASE 2 Share-based Payment, from 1 July 2004 the group is required fo recognise an expense for those
options that were issued to employees under the Transpaciic Industries Group Lid Executive Share Option Plan.

This will resuit in a change 1o the current accounting policy under which no expense is recognised for equity-
based compensation.

if the policy required by AASB 2 had been applied during the year ended 30 June 2005, consolidated employee
benefits expense would have been $226,371 higher, with a corresponding increase in a share-based payment
reserve in equity.

D} FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group will be taking advantage of the exemption available under AASB 1 to apply AASE 132 Financial
Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation and AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
from 1 July 2005. This allows the Group to apply previous Australian generally accepted accounting principles
{Australian GAAP} to the comparative information of financial instruments within the scope of AASE 132 and
AASB 139 for the 30 June 2006 financial report.

Under AASBE 132, the current classification of financial instruments issued by entiies in the consolidated entity
would not change.

E} REVENUE DISCLOSURES IN RELATION TO THE SALE OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Under AIFRS, the revenue recognised in relation to the sale of non-current assels is the net gain on the sale.
This is in confrast to the current Australian GAAP treatment under which the gross proceeds from the sale are
recognised as revenue and the carrying amount of the assels sold is recognised as an expense. The net impact
on the profit or loss of this difference is nil.

if the policy reguired under AIFRS had been applied during the vear ended 30 June 2005, the consolidated
revente from ordinary activities would have been $15,261,000 lower, the consolidated carrying amount of
non-current assets sold disclosed as an expense in the statement of financial performance would have been
$15,070,000 lower and the consolidated other income would have been $191,000 higher.



Notes to the Financial Statements

Forihe Financial Year Ended 30 June 2005 (continued)

F} BUSINESS COMBINATION

AASB 3 Business Combinations changes the basis of recording business acquisitions. The most noticeable
change relates o, in certain circumstances, recognising a profit in the statement of financial performance at the
time of acquiring a business. These circumstances arise if the acquisition price is less than the fair value of the
net assets acquired and in particular may arise when the acquired intangibles are fair valued.

if the policy required under AIFRS had been applied during the year ended 30 June 2005, the consolidated
revenue, net profit and intangibles weould have increased by $2 million.

Although the adjustments disclosed in this note are based on management's best knowledge of expected
standards and interpretations, and current facts and circumstances, these may change. For example, amended
or additional standards or inferpretations may be issued by the AASE and IASB. Therefore, untll the company
prepares is first full AIFRS financial statements, the possibility cannot be excluded that the accompanying
disclosures may have to be adjusied.
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Directors’ Declaration

in the opinion of the directors of Transpacific Industries Group Lid:

{a) the financial statements and notes numbered 1 to 43 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including:

{i} giving a true and fair view of the Company’s and consclidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June
20056 and of their performance, as represented by the resulis of their operations and their cash flows,
for the financial year ended on that dats; and

{iiy complying with Accounting Standards, the Corporations Reguiations 2001 and other mandatory
professional reporting requirements;

{b} there are reasonable grounds fo believe that the Company will be able fo pay iis debts as and when they
become due and payable; and

The directors have been given the declarations by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer required
by section 285A of the Corporations Act 2001,

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

&735;;3@ U@Q [ <

T E Peabody J J Richards
Chairman Deputy Chairman

Brisbane, 12 September 2008



independent Audit Report to Members of Transpacific Industries Group Lid

Scope
THE FINANCIAL REPORT, REMUNERATION DISCLOSURES AND DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position, statement of financial performance,
statement of cash flows, accompanying notfes to the financial statements and the direciors’ declaration of
Transpacific Industries Group Lid {the Company) and Transpacific Industries Group Lid and controlled entiies
{the consolidated entity) for the year ended 30 June 2005. The consolidated entity comprises both the
company and the entitles #t controlled during the year.

The Company has disclosed information about the remuneration of directors and executives (“remuneration
disclosures”}, as required by Accounting Standard AASB 1046 Direclor and Executive Disclosures by
Disclosing Entities, under the heading "Remuneration Report” in pages 27 o 31 of the directors’ report as
permitied by the Corporations Regulations 2001.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and true and fair presentation of the
financial report in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, This includes responsibility for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and detect
fraud and error, and for the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the financial report. The
directors are also responsible for the remuneration disclosures contained in the directors’ report.

AUDIT APPROACH

We conducted an independent audit in order fo express an opinion to the members of the Company. Our
audit was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, in order to provide reascnable
assurance as to whether the financial report is free of material misstatement and the remuneration disclosures
comply with Accounting Standard AASE 1048 and the Corporations Regulations 2001. The nature of an audit
is influenced by factors such as the use of professional judgement, selective testing, the inherent limitations of
internal control, and the availability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot
guarantee that alt material misstatemenis have been detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents fairly, in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including compliance with Accounting Standards and other
mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia, a view which is consistent with our understanding of
the Company's and the consolidated entity’'s financial position, and of their performance as represented by the
results of their operations and cash flows and whether the remuneration disclosures comply with Accounting
Standard AASB 1046 and the Corporations Regulations 2001,

We formed cur audit opinion on the basis of these proceduras, which included:

« gxamining, on a test basis, information o provide evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report and remuneration disclosures, and
« assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors.
While we considered the effectiveness of management's internal controls over financial reporting when

determining the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed to provide assurance on
internal controls.

Independence

In conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian professiconal ethical
prenouncements and the Corporations Act 2001.

in accordance with ASIC Class Order 05/83, we declare o the best of our knowledge and belief that the
auditor's independence declaration set out on page 34 of the financlal report has not changed as at the date
of providing our audit opinion.
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Audit Opinion

In our opinion,

1. the financial report of Transpacific Industries Group Lid is in accordance with:
{a} the Corporations Act 2001, including:

{) giving atrue and fair view of the Company’s and consclidated entity's financial position as at 30 June
20056 and of their performance for the year ended on that date; and

{ity complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

{b} other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia.

2. the remuneration disclosures that are contained in pages 27 to 31 of the director's report comply with
Accounting Standard AASE 1046 and the Corporations Regulations 2001,

- . “ I M,
}.&f _&mjﬁzgf‘ o fﬁ.ﬂ"mﬂ' k’b—'%\-ﬁ:‘h

Bentleys MR P M Power
Brisbane Partnership Pariner
Brishane

12 September 2005



Top 20 shareholders as at 31 August 2005 No. of shares % Held

Tandom Pty Lid 39,740,566 15.86
Brenzil Pty Lt 36,527,045 18.26
Fimore Liemited 25,732,389 12.86
J P Morgan Nominess Australia Limited 12,329,784 6.16
ANZ Norminess Umnited {Cash Income A/C) 11,626,080 5.81
Jd Richards & Sons Pty Lid 8,333,334 417
National Norminses Limited 6,617,562 3.31
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited (CFS Future Leaders Fund A/C) 5,569,806 2.78
Westpac Custodian Nominees Limited 3,588,101 1.79
Suncorp Custodian Services Py Limited 3,551 518 1.78
Quieensland investmert Corporation 2723472 1.36
Citicorp Nomineas Pty Limited {CFSIL CFS WS Small Comgp A/C) 1,861,012 0.63
Cogent Nominess Py Limited 1,752,721 .88
UBS Private Clients Australia Norminees Pty Lid 1,228,820 0.61
AMP Life Limited 1,051,322 0.53
GiC General Ltd 1,024,600 0.51
Cogent Nominess Pty Limited (SMP Accounts) 899,244 0.45
Fouity Tristees Limited (5GH P Absociute Return Fund) 866,781 0.43
WDFT Pty Lt 837,333 0.42
Suncorp General Insurance Limited 810,700 0.4

Total 166,673,187 83.31

Substantial shareholders
The number of shares held by substantial sharsholders as disciosed in the
substartial shareholding notices giver: 1o the Company as at 31 August 2005 were:

No. of shares % Held
Tandorm Pty Lid 38,745,566 10.86
Brenzil Pty Ltd 36,527,045 18.26
Fimore Limited 25,732,389 12.86
ING Australia Holdings Limited and rslated companies 14,312,450 7.16
Total 116,312,450 58.14

Anventity has a substantial shareholding if the total votes attaching 1o shares in which the entity and their associates have g relevant interest is

5% or more. The list of the twenly larpest shareholders is based on the number of shares hald in the name of each shareholder ot including their
associates), even if the shareholder does not have a relevant interest in the shares, for example, because the shareholder holds the share ag a
nominee. The fist of the twenty fargest sharsholders of the Company and the fist of substantial shareholders of the Cormpany differ for this reason.

Staternent of Quoted Securities
The Cornpany's total number of shares o issue as at 31 August 2005 is 200,071,429 ordinary fully paid shares. At 31 August 2008 the tolal
nurrber of shareholders owning these shares was 3,898 on the register of members maintained by Computershare Invesior Services Pty Lid,

83.31% of total issued capital is held by or on behalf of the twanty largest shareholders.

Voting rights

Under the Company’s constitution, svery member entitied to vote who is present at a general meeting of the Company in person
of by proxy or by attornegy or in the case of a corporation, by represertative, shall, upon a show of hands, have ong vols only.

Where a member is entitled to cast two or more voles it may appoirt not more than two proxies or atiormays.

Poll — On a poll, every mermber entitied to vote shall, whether present in person or by proxy or attorney or, in the case of a corporation,
by represerdative, have ong vote for evary share held by the mermber.

At 31 August 2008, there were options over 13,800,000 unissued ordinary shares, 86,960,000 options are held by Non-aexecutive diractors
and executives of the Corporate group {excluding the Bxecutive Chalrrman) granted under the Transpacific Executive Share Option Plan.
8,950,000 options are held by Brenzil Pty Ltd under an option deed. There are no voting rights attached to unissued ordinary shares.
Voting rights will be attached 1o the unissued ordinary shares when the options have been exercised,

Distribution Schedule of Shareholders
No. of shares: 1 1000 1,001 - 5,000 5,001 —10,000 10,601 — 100,000 100,001 and over
No. of shareholders: 612 2088 675 465 59

The number of sharsholders each holding less than a markstable parcet of the Company’s ordinary shares at 31 August 2005 was 4.

Shares subject to voluntary escrow
The Company has entered into a restriction deed with Brenzil Pty Ltd, Tandom Pty Ltd and Filmore Lirnited which collectively own 51% of
the issued share capital of the Company. Under the restriction deed, thase shareholders agree not 1o dispose of or agree or offer to dispose
of the shares hekd by them as set out below for a period of 18 months frorm the date of official quotation on ASX (3 May 2005} of the shares
irt the Cormpany. The escrow period ends 3 November 2006,

No. of restricted shares

Tandom Pty Lid 39,740,566
Brenzil Pty Lid 36,627 045
Fimore Limited 25,732,389

Stock Exchange listing
The shares of Transpaciic Industries Group Ltd are listed on the Australian Stock Exchange
uricter the trade symbol TPE with Brisbaneg baing the home exchange.
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